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PART I — Financial Information
Item 1. Financial Statements

CrossAmerica Partners LP
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
(unaudited)

(Amounts in thousands, except unit data)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $340 and $136 at September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Inventory
Environmental indemnification asset - current portion
Assets held for sale
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Environmental indemnification asset — noncurrent portion
Deferred financing fees, net
Goodwill
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Long-term debt - current portion
Lease financing obligations - current portion
Accounts payable
Motor fuel taxes payable
Environmental liability - current portion
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Lease financing obligations
Environmental liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Equity
Limited Partners’ Interest
Common units—public (14,709,203 and 10,472,348 units issued and outstanding at September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively)
Common units—affiliates (625,000 units issued and outstanding at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013)
Subordinated units—affiliates (7,525,000 units issued and outstanding at September 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013)
General Partner’s Interest
Total partners’ capital
Noncontrolling interests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying unaudited notes are an integral part of these
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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September 30, December 31,
2014 2013

$ 3,269 $ 4,115
32,169 7,342
20,428 16,558
14,350 2,141

601 477

2,590 1,328
8,772 3,535
82,179 35,496
344,196 288,729
73,655 47,005

885 761

7,922 5,743
29,716 9,324
9,848 4,563

$ 548,401 $ 391,621
$ 26,302 $ 51
2,782 2,568
41,759 20,567
9,743 7,186

601 477

13,039 8,008
94,226 38,857
146,445 173,509
60,871 64,364
885 761

19,356 4,957
15,919 14,502
337,702 296,950
337,017 211,544

(43,609) (42,885)

(82,708) (73,988)
210,700 94,671
1) =

210,699 94,671

$ 548,401 $ 391,621




CrossAmerica Partners LP

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations
for the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

(unaudited)

(Amounts in thousands, except unit and per unit data)

Revenues:
Revenues from fuel sales
Revenues from fuel sales to affiliates
Revenues from food and merchandise sales
Rent income
Rent income from affiliates
Other revenues
Total revenues
Costs and Expenses:
Cost of revenues from fuel sales
Cost of revenues from fuel sales to affiliates
Cost of revenues from food and merchandise sales
Rent expense
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Loss (gains) on sales of assets, net
Total costs and operating expenses
Operating income
Interest expense
Other income, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax benefit
Net income
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income attributable to partners

Incentive distribution right holders’ interest in net income
Limited partners’ interest in net income
Net income per common and subordinated unit—basic
Net income per common and subordinated unit—diluted
Weighted average limited partners’ units outstanding
Common units - basic
Common units - diluted
Subordinated units — basic and diluted

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
$ 602,553 $ 251,626 $ 1,427,701 $ 698,649
190,461 228,347 575,358 719,916
28,588 — 45,837 —
5,797 4,167 16,743 11,352
5,032 5,938 15,544 19,287
311 496 771 1,427
832,742 490,574 2,081,954 1,450,631
588,674 246,281 1,398,894 684,224
182,702 222,021 556,213 700,756
21,160 34 35,235 34
5,253 3,679 14,001 11,463
11,151 1,286 19,890 3,219
8,335 5,212 21,518 14,915
6,988 4,604 22,197 12,003
49 — (1,484) (47)
824,312 483,117 2,066,464 1,426,567
8,430 7,457 15,490 24,064
(5,162) (3,349) (12,901) (10,233)
92 93 315 259
3,360 4,201 2,904 14,090
(803) (723) (4,579) (60)
4,163 4,924 7,483 14,150
8 — 8 —
$ 4,155 $ 4924 $ 7,475 $ 14,150
$ 64 $ — $ 126 $ —
$ 4,091 $ 4,924 $ 7,349 $ 14,150
$ 0.21 $ 0.33 $ 0.39 $ 0.940
$ 0.21 $ 0.33 $ 0.39 $ 0.940
11,824,203 7,526,044 11,380,612 7,525,983
11,834,098 7,526,044 11,445,390 7,525,983
7,525,000 7,525,000 7,525,000 7,525,000

The accompanying unaudited notes are an integral part of these
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Condensed Consolidated Statements of Equity and Comprehensive Income

Balance, December 31, 2013
Equity-based director compensation
Vesting of incentive awards, net of units withheld for taxes

Proceeds of equity offering and overallotment exercise, net
of issuance costs

Net income and comprehensive income

Distributions paid

Balance, September 30, 2014

CrossAmerica Partners LP

(unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands, except unit data)

Limited Partners’ Interest

Common Common General Incentive
Unitholders — Unitholders — Subordinated Partner’s Distribution Noncontrolling
Public Affiliates Units — Affiliates Interest Rights Interest Equity
Units Dollars Units Dollars Units Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
10,472,348 $211,544 625,000 $(42,885) 7,525,000 $(73,988) — $ 94671
4,172 113 — — — — — — — 113
92,683 2,503 — — — — — — — 2,503
4,140,000 135,032 — — — — — — — 135,032
— 4,181 — 243 — 2,925 — 126 8 7,483
— (16,356) — (967) — (11,645) — (126) (9) _(29,103)
14,709,203 $337,017 625,000 $(43,609) 7,525,000 $(82,708) $ - (1) $210,699

The accompanying unaudited notes are an integral part of these

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CrossAmerica Partners LP
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2014 2013
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income $ 7,483 $ 14,150
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 21,518 14,915
Accretion of interest on asset retirement obligations 87 39
Amortization of deferred financing fees 2,386 2,013
Amortization of (above) below market leases, net (81) 105
Provision for losses on doubtful accounts 204 90
Deferred income taxes (4,668) (1,096)
Equity-based incentive compensation expense 3,572 2,223
Equity-based director compensation expense 303 21
Gains on sales of assets, net (1,484) 47)
Gain on settlement of capital lease obligations (325) (272)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (5,701) (642)
Accounts receivable from affiliates (2,358) (4,651)
Inventory 954 (1,829)
Environmental indemnification asset (248) (212)
Other current assets (1,441) (140)
Other assets (1,882) 161
Accounts payable (12,254) 4,910
Motor fuel taxes payable 2,254 (2,482)
Environmental liability 248 217
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (74) 1,217
Other long-term liabilities (62) (1,433)
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,431 27,257
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment — 2,210
Proceeds from divestiture of lubricants business 10,001 —
Purchases of property and equipment (8,797) (5,249)
Principal payments received on notes receivable 2,141 48
Cash paid in connection with acquisitions, net of cash acquired (109,741) (30,424)
Net cash used in investing activities (106,396) (33,415)



Nine Months Ended

September 30,
2014 2013
Cash Flows From Financing Activities

(Repayments) proceeds under the revolving credit facility (775) 32,292
Repayment of long term debt (38) —
Repayment of lease financing obligations (1,920) (6,649)
Payment of deferred financing fees (4,565) (408)
Payment to affiliate for commission sites — (3,508)
Advances to Zimri Holdings, LL.C (4,481) —
Advances repaid by Zimri Holdings, LLC 2,969 —
Advances to from affiliates — (1,720)
Proceeds from issuance of common units, net of issuance costs 135,032
Distributions paid to holders of incentive distribution rights (126) —
Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests 9 —
Distributions paid on common and subordinated units (28,968) (18,435)

Net cash provided by financing activities 97,119 1,572

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (846) (4,586)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Beginning of period 4,115 4,768
End of period $ 3,269 $ 182

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Cash paid for interest $ 10,798 $ 8,289
Cash paid for income taxes $ 556 $ 663
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: Increase (Decrease)
in Assets and Liabilities

Sales of property and equipment in Section 1031 like-kind exchange transaction $ (4,670) $ =
Removal of property and equipment and capital lease obligation for sites terminated from Getty lease $ (1,359) $  (1,778)
Lessor direct costs incurred and deferred rent income recorded related to lease transaction between affiliate and

unrelated third-party $ — $ 1,700
Issuance of note payable in connection with purchase of sites $ — $ 1,000
Reassessment of asset retirement obligations $ — $ 319
Issuance of note payable in connection with Rocky Top acquisition $ — $ 26,250

The accompanying unaudited notes are an integral part of these
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CrossAmerica Partners LP
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014
(unaudited)

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
CrossAmerica Partners LP (formerly Lehigh Gas Partners LP) (the “Partnership”) engages in:

»  the wholesale distribution of motor fuels (generally using unrelated third party transportation service providers) to sub-wholesalers, independent
dealers, lessee dealers and Lehigh Gas—Ohio, LLC, an affiliate (“LGO”);

» the retail distribution of motor fuels to end customers at sites operated by commission agents;

+ the owning or leasing of sites used in the retail distribution of motor fuels and, in turn, generating rent income from the lease or sublease of the
sites to third parties or LGO; and

» the operation of convenience stores and branded, quick-service restaurants.

The Partnership’s primary operations are conducted by the following consolidated, wholly-owned subsidiaries:
+  Lehigh Gas Wholesale LLC (“LGW?”), which distributes motor fuels on a wholesale basis;
* LGP Realty Holdings LP (“LGPR”), which functions as the real property holding company of the Partnership; and

»  Lehigh Gas Wholesale Services, Inc. (“LGWS”), which owns and leases (or leases and sub-leases) real estate and personal property used in the
retail distribution of motor fuels as well as provides maintenance and other services to lessee dealers and other customers (including LGO).
LGWS also distributes motor fuels on a retail basis to end customers at commission sites and, effective April 30, 2014, Petroleum Marketers, Inc.
(“PMI”), a subsidiary of LGWS, operates convenience stores and branded quick-service restaurants.

LGO is an operator of retail motor fuel stations that purchases all of its motor fuel requirements from the Partnership on a wholesale basis in accordance with
the Petroleum Marketing Practices Act (“PMPA”) Franchise Agreement between LGO and LGW. LGO also leases motor fuel stations from the Partnership in
accordance with a master lease agreement between LGO and the Partnership. The financial results of LGO are not consolidated with those of the Partnership.
For more information regarding the Partnership’s relationship with LGO, see Note 18.

The Partnership was founded in 2012 and completed its initial public offering (“IPO”) on October 30, 2012. In connection with the IPO, Dunne Manning Inc.
and its subsidiaries and affiliates, formerly known as Lehigh Gas Corporation (“DMI”), contributed a part of their business, which we refer to as the
“Predecessor Entity,” to the Partnership.

On October 1, 2014, the Partnership and CST Brands, Inc. (together with its affiliates, “CST”) announced the consummation of the previously announced sale
to CST of the Partnership’s General Partner, Lehigh Gas GP LLC (the “General Partner”), from DMI, an entity wholly owned by the 2004 Irrevocable Trust
of Joseph V. Topper, Sr. (the “Topper Trust”) for which Joseph V. Topper, Jr. is the trustee, and all of the membership interests in limited liability companies
formed by trusts for which each of Mr. Topper and John B. Reilly, III serves as trustee, which limited liability companies own all of the incentive distribution
rights (“IDRs”) (the “General Partner Acquisition”). CST is one of the largest independent retailers of motor fuels and convenience merchandise in North
America.

The General Partner manages the operations and activities of the Partnership. The Partnership is managed and operated by the board of directors and
executive officers of the General Partner. As a result of the consummation of the General Partner Acquisition, CST controls the General Partner and has the
right to appoint all members of the board of directors of the General Partner.

Immediately following the consummation of the General Partner Acquisition, the Partnership changed its name to “CrossAmerica Partners LP” and began
trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CAPL.

See Note 20 for additional information.

Interim Financial Statements

The accompanying interim condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures are unaudited and have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) on the same basis as the corresponding audited financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2013, and in the opinion of management, include all adjustments of a normal recurring nature considered necessary to present fairly the Partnership’s
financial position as of September 30, 2014, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the periods presented. Operating results for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2014, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2014, or any other
future periods. The balance sheet as of December 31, 2013, was derived from the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013.
Certain information and note disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted under
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) rules and regulations for interim financial statements. These unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the corresponding audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for the year ended
December 31, 2013, included in the Partnership’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to prior period amounts to conform to the current year presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on net income
or equity for any periods.



2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue Recognition

Revenues from wholesale fuel sales are recognized when fuel is delivered to the customer. Revenues from retail fuel sales are recognized when fuel is sold to
the customer. Substantially all revenues from fuel sales are from sales of gasoline, with the remainder comprised of diesel and other products.

Revenues from leasing arrangements in which the Partnership is the lessor are recognized ratably over the term of the underlying lease.

Retail food and merchandise sales are recognized net of applicable provisions for discounts and allowances upon delivery, generally at the point of sale.

Inventory

Motor fuel inventory consists of gasoline, diesel fuel and other petroleum products and is stated at the lower of average cost or market using the first-in, first-
out method. No provision for potentially obsolete or slow-moving inventory has been made. The Partnership records inventory from the time of the purchase
of motor fuels from third party suppliers until the retail sale to the end customer.

Food and merchandise inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out method.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Partnership is obligated by contractual or regulatory requirements or contingently obligated at the discretion of the lessor to remove certain equipment,
such as underground gasoline storage tanks, or perform other remediation upon retirement of certain assets at sites at which the Partnership is the lessee.
Certain states statutorily require removal of the underground storage tanks at a certain point in time. An asset retirement obligation is recognized in the period
incurred, which is generally either at the time of lease inception or at the time a decision is made to close a site. Determination of the amounts recognized is
based on numerous estimates and assumptions, including expected settlement dates and probability of occurrence, future retirement costs, future inflation
rates and credit-adjusted risk-free rates. The Partnership’s asset retirement obligations, which are primarily included in other long-term liabilities in the
balance sheets, totaled $2.0 million and $2.2 million at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Asset Impairment

The Partnership reviews long-lived assets, including property and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill, for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the long-lived asset (group) might not be recoverable in accordance with ASC 360, “Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Such events and circumstances include, among other factors: operating losses; market value declines; changes in the
expected physical life of an asset; changes in business plans or those of major customers, suppliers or other business partners; changes in competition and
competitive practices; uncertainties associated with the U.S. and world economies; changes in the expected level of capital, operating or environmental
remediation expenditures; and changes in governmental regulations or actions. The impairment evaluation is initially based on the projected undiscounted
cash flows of the asset (group), including residual value upon eventual disposition. If the projected undiscounted cash flows of the asset (group) are less than
its carrying value, the impairment loss is measured by comparing the present value of the future cash flows associated with the asset (group) to its carrying
value and is recorded at that time.

New Accounting Guidance
Discontinued Operations

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standard Update (“ASU”) 2014-08, Reporting Discontinued
Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of an Entity, which revises the criteria to qualify as a discontinued operation and requires new disclosures. Under this
guidance, a discontinued operation is (1) a component of an entity or group of components that has been disposed of or classified as held for sale that
represents a strategic shift that has or will have a major effect on an entity’s operations and financial results or (2) an acquired business that is classified as
held for sale on the date of acquisition. This guidance also permits companies to have continuing cash flows and significant continuing involvement with the
disposed component.

The Partnership disposes of individual sites or groups of sites from time to time that generally do not represent a strategic shift and generally do not have a
major effect on operations or financial results. As a result of this new guidance, these disposals will generally not meet the criteria for recognition as a
discontinued operation. The Partnership has early adopted this guidance on a prospective basis effective January 1, 2014.

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue and develops a
common revenue standard under U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards. Specifically, the core principle of the guidance is that an entity
should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods and services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

This guidance is effective January 1, 2017, and provides for modified retrospective transition. Management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this
guidance.



3. Acquisitions
PMI Acquisition

On April 28, 2014, the Partnership exercised an option (“Option”) to purchase 100% of the membership interests of Pinehurst Petroleum, LLC (“Pinehurst”)
from Joseph L. Smith IIT and John A. Kopfer, Jr. (“Smith/Kopfer”) for $4.0 million. Pinehurst’s sole asset was an Agreement and Plan of Merger among
Pinehurst, PMI Merger Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pinehurst (“Sub”), Petroleum Marketers, Incorporated, (“PMI”), Petroleum Marketers,
Incorporated Employee Stock Ownership Trust and Ronald R. Hare, in his capacity as representative (the “Merger Agreement”) pursuant to which Pinehurst
agreed to acquire all of the shares of PMI for $73.5 million inclusive of an adjustment for working capital, through the merger (the “Merger”) of Sub and
PMLI. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, the stockholders of PMI agreed to escrow $5.0 million for 25 months after the closing date to secure the
indemnity provisions contained in the Merger Agreement for the benefit of Pinehurst. The Merger Agreement also contains customary representations,
warranties, agreements and obligations of the parties, and termination, closing conditions and indemnity provisions. The transaction was funded with
borrowings under the Partnership’s Credit Facility. On April 30, 2014, pursuant to the Option, the Partnership purchased all of the equity interests of Pinehurst
($1.0 million of the consideration has been included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities at September 30, 2014). Subsequent to such purchase,
the Merger became effective and, as a result, the Partnership became the owner of PMI. The exercise of the Option and the Merger is referred to as the PMI
Transaction.

The acquisition augmented the Partnership’s presence in Virginia and complements the existing Tennessee operations. PMI operates two primary lines of
business: convenience stores and petroleum products distribution. In its convenience store business, PMI operates 87 convenience stores and nine co-located
branded quick service restaurants located in Virginia and West Virginia. The convenience stores distribute primarily branded fuel and operate under PMI’s
own proprietary convenience store brand, “Stop in Food Stores.” The petroleum products business distributes motor fuels and other petroleum products to
customers throughout Virginia, West Virginia, Tennessee and North Carolina.

On May, 1, 2014, immediately subsequent to the effectiveness of the Merger, the Partnership caused PMI to divest its lubricants business (the “Lubricants
Business”) to Zimri Holdings, LLC (“Zimri”), an entity owned by Smith/Kopfer for the sum of $14.0 million pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement
(“APA”) between PMI and Zimri. The APA contains customary representations, warranties, agreements and obligations of the parties, as well as indemnity
provisions. A trust controlled by Joseph V. Topper, Jr, Chairman and CEO of the general partner of the Partnership at the time, financed the purchase of the
Lubricants Business by Zimri pursuant to a loan to Zimri. The financing by Mr. Topper’s trust was approved by the former Conflicts Committee of the board
of directors of the general partner of the Partnership.

The following table summarizes the preliminary fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date, the fair value of the net assets
divested as part of the Lubricants Business and the preliminary fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed net of the divestiture (in thousands):

Divestiture Preliminary

Preliminary of Purchase Price

Purchase Price Lubricants Allocation net

Allocation Business of Divestiture

Accounts receivable $ 21,368 $ 2,038 $ 19,330
Inventory 19,040 6,157 12,883
Other current assets 2,903 5 2,898
Property and equipment 48,770 4,437 44,333
Intangible assets 15,000 — 15,000
Other noncurrent assets 210 — 210
Total identifiable assets 107,291 12,637 94,654
Accounts payable 36,310 2,864 35,446
Motor fuel taxes payable 303 — 303
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 2,371 — 2,371
Deferred tax liabilities 18,787 — 18,787
Net identifiable assets 49,520 9,773 39,747
Goodwill 23,996 4,227 19,769
Net assets $ 73,516 $ 14,000 $ 59,516
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The fair value of inventory was estimated at retail selling price less costs and a reasonable profit allowance for the selling effort.

The above fair values of assets and liabilities acquired are provisional and based on information that was available as of the acquisition date. The Partnership
believes the information provides a reasonable basis for estimating the fair values. The purchase price allocation is preliminary pending a final valuation of
the assets and liabilities, including a final valuation of property and equipment, intangible assets and the impact of income taxes. Thus, the provisional
measurements of fair value reflected are subject to change, and such change could be significant. The Partnership expects to finalize the valuation and
complete the accounting for the transaction as soon as practicable, but no later than one year from the acquisition date.

The fair value of land, buildings, and equipment was based on a cost approach, with the fair value of an asset estimated by reference to the replacement cost
to obtain a substitute asset of comparable features and functionality, and is the amount a willing market participant would pay for such an asset, taking into
consideration the asset condition as well as any physical deterioration, functional obsolescence, and/or economic obsolescence. The buildings and equipment
are being depreciated on a straight-line basis, with estimated useful lives of 20 years for buildings and 5 to 15 years for equipment.

The $15.0 million fair value of the wholesale fuel supply agreements was based on an income approach, with the fair value estimated to be the present value
of incremental after-tax cash flows attributable solely to the wholesale fuel supply agreements over their estimated remaining useful life, using probability-
weighted cash flows, generally assumed to extend through the term of the wholesale fuel supply contracts, and using discount rates considered appropriate
given the inherent risks associated with this type of agreement. Management believes the level and timing of cash flows represent relevant market participant
assumptions. The wholesale fuel supply agreements are being amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of approximately 10 years.

Goodwill recorded is primarily attributable to the deferred tax liabilities arising from the application of purchase accounting.

Aggregate incremental revenues since the closing of the PMI Transaction included in the Partnership’s statement of operations were $246.9 million and
$420.7 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively.

The following is unaudited pro forma information related to the PMI acquisition as if the transaction had occurred on January 1, 2013 (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Total revenues $832,742 $761,603 $2,348,746 $2,229,580
Net income 4,163 4,142 5,740 11,247

Atlas Acquisition

On May 19, 2014, the Partnership completed its acquisition of 52 wholesale supply contracts, one sub-wholesaler contract, nine fee sites, six leasehold sites
and certain other assets from affiliates of Atlas Oil Company (“Atlas”) for $34.0 million. In addition, the Partnership acquired certain short-term notes
receivable associated with the wholesale supply and commission marketing contracts for $5.2 million, bringing total consideration to $39.2 million, subject to
closing adjustments. The transaction was funded by borrowings under the Partnership’s Credit Facility and $4.0 million of proceeds from the sale of the
Lubricants Business that were directed to an escrow agent as part of a Section 1031 like-kind exchange.

These assets are located in the Chicago, Illinois area and are branded BP. The wholesale supply contracts have a remaining average term of 15 years and the
fee or leasehold sites are currently leased to third party commission agents. The short-term notes receivable relate to previously negotiated purchase
agreements of certain sites by the dealers occupying the locations. All of the notes receivable relate to sites supplied under contracts acquired in this
transaction. The notes receivable have a weighted average maturity of June 2015.

In connection with the acquisition, Sam Simon, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Atlas Oil Company, entered into a non-compete agreement that
generally restricts him and entities controlled by him from (a) engaging in the wholesale distribution of motor fuel or owning or operating a retail motor fuel
facility and/or convenience store within certain territories for one year after the closing date, and (b) constructing any new retail motor fuel facility and/or
convenience stores within certain territories for five years after the closing date.
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The following table summarizes the preliminary fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date (in thousands):

Adjusted

Preliminary Preliminary
Purchase Price Cumulative Purchase Price

Allocation Adjustments Allocation
Inventory $ 280 $ — $ 280
Property and equipment 21,735 (2,775) 18,960
Intangible assets 15,043 3,508 18,551
Other noncurrent assets 5,170 17 5,187
Total identifiable assets 42,228 750 42,978
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 1,111 77 1,188
Deferred tax liabilities — 975 975
Other noncurrent liabilities 932 1,260 2,192
Net identifiable assets 40,185 (1,562) 38,623
Goodwill - 600 600
Net assets $ 40,185 $ (962) $ 39,223

The above fair values of assets and liabilities acquired are provisional and based on information that was available as of the acquisition date. The Partnership
believes the information provides a reasonable basis for estimating the fair values. The purchase price allocation is preliminary pending a final valuation of
the assets and liabilities, including a final valuation of property and equipment, intangible assets and the impact of income taxes. Thus, the provisional
measurements of fair value reflected are subject to change, and such change could be significant. The Partnership expects to finalize the valuation and
complete the accounting for the transaction as soon as practicable, but no later than one year from the acquisition date.

The fair value of land, buildings, and equipment was based on a cost approach, with the fair value of an asset estimated by reference to the replacement cost
to obtain a substitute asset of comparable features and functionality, and is the amount a willing market participant would pay for such an asset, taking into
consideration the asset condition as well as any physical deterioration, functional obsolescence, and/or economic obsolescence. The buildings and equipment
are being depreciated on a straight-line basis, with estimated useful lives of 20 years for buildings and 5 to 15 years for equipment.

The approximate $15.4 million fair value of the wholesale fuel supply agreements was based on an income approach, with the fair value estimated to be the
present value of incremental after-tax cash flows attributable solely to the wholesale fuel supply agreements over their estimated remaining useful life, using
probability-weighted cash flows, generally assumed to extend through the term of the wholesale fuel supply contracts, and using discount rates considered
appropriate given the inherent risks associated with this type of agreement. Management believes the level and timing of cash flows represent relevant market
participant assumptions. The wholesale fuel supply agreements are being amortized on an accelerated basis over an estimated useful life of approximately

10 years.

The approximate $2.2 million fair value of the wholesale fuel distribution rights was based on an income approach, with the fair value estimated to be the
present value of incremental after-tax cash flows attributable solely to the wholesale fuel distribution rights over their estimated remaining useful life, using
probability-weighted cash flows, using discount rates considered appropriate given the inherent risks associated with this type of transaction. Management
believes the level and timing of cash flows represent relevant market participant assumptions. The wholesale fuel distribution rights are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of approximately 10 years.

The approximate $0.6 million fair value of the covenant not to compete was based on an income approach, with the fair value estimated to be the difference
between the present value of after-tax cash flows with and without the covenant not to compete in place, using probability-weighted cash flows, using
discount rates considered appropriate given the inherent risks associated with this type of transaction. Management believes the level and timing of cash flows
represent relevant market participant assumptions. The covenant not to compete intangible asset is being amortized on a straight-line basis over a 5-year
period.

The approximate $0.4 million fair value of the discount related to lease agreements with below average market value and the $1.3 million fair value of the
discount related to lease agreements with above average market value were based on an income approach, with the fair value estimated to be the present value
of incremental after-tax cash flows attributable solely to the lease agreements over their estimated remaining useful life, generally assumed to extend through
the term of the lease agreements, and using discount rates considered appropriate given the inherent risks associated with this type of agreement. The
Partnership believes the level and timing of cash flows represent relevant market participant assumptions. The discount related to lease agreements with
above/below average market value is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the respective lease agreements, with an estimated weighted
average useful life of 5 years.
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Aggregate incremental revenues for the acquisition since the acquisition date included in the Partnership’s statements of operations were $60.7 million and

$89.1 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively.

Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs totaled $0.1 million and $0.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 and $6.1 million and $1.0 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Such costs are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

4. Assets Held for Sale

The Partnership classified five and two sites as held for sale at September 30, 2014, and December 31, 2013, respectively. These assets were classified as held
for sale at September 30, 2014, as they did not fit the Partnership’s strategy and are expected to be sold in 2014. Assets held for sale were as follows (in

thousands):
September 30,
2014

Land $ 1,844
Buildings and improvements 853
Equipment and other 875
Property and equipment, at cost 3,572
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (982)
Assets held for sale $ 2,590

5. Inventory

December 31,
2013

$ 932
543

299

1,774

(446)

$ 1,328

As noted previously, as a result of the PMI Transaction, the Partnership began recording food and merchandise inventory as well as motor fuel inventory at

the sites it operates. Inventory consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30,
2014
Motor fuel inventory
Gasoline $ 5,044
Diesel 2,087
Other 522
Total motor fuel inventory 7,653
Food and merchandise inventory 6,697
Inventory $ 14,350
6. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, net consisted of the following (in thousands):
September 30,
2014
Land $ 147,120
Buildings and improvements 154,398
Leasehold improvements 9,811
Equipment and other 87,104
Property and equipment in service, at cost 398,433
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (57,589)
Property and equipment in service, net 340,844
Construction in progress 3,352
Property and equipment, net $ 344,196

13

December 31,
2013

$ 1,901
240

2,141

5214l

December 31,
2013

$ 122,126
124,479
7,437
76,236
330,278
(43,808)
286,470
2,259

$ 288,729



Depreciation expense, including amortization of assets recorded under sale-leasebacks and capital lease obligations, was $6.0 million and $4.1 million for the
three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, and $15.4 million and $11.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

In addition to the business combinations discussed in Note 3, the following asset purchases and divestitures occurred in the nine months ended September 30,
2014 and 2013:

. The Partnership sold two sites during the nine months ended September 30, 2014, resulting in a gain of $1.5 million.

. In May 2013, the Partnership repurchased four sites in Ohio for $7.1 million. These sites were previously leased through sale-leaseback
transactions that were accounted for as lease financing obligations with a remaining balance of $5.1 million. The $2.0 million difference
between the purchase price and the remaining balance of the lease financing obligation was recorded as an increase to property and
equipment.

. In June 2013, the Partnership purchased two sites in Florida for $1.6 million, of which $0.6 million was paid in cash and the remaining
balance was financed as a note payable.

7. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Changes in goodwill consisted of the following (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 9,324
Goodwill from acquisitions 24,619
Goodwill associated with divestiture of Lubricants Business (4,227)
Balance at September 30, 2014 $29,716

No impairment losses have been recorded to goodwill. See Note 3 for additional information on the acquisitions.

Intangible assets other than goodwill consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Net Net

Gross Accumulated Carrying Gross Accumulated Carrying

Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Wholesale fuel supply agreements $56,145 $ 12,477 $43,668 $25,736 $ 9,059  $16,677
Wholesale fuel distribution rights 28,360 4,336 24,024 26,180 2,282 23,898
Trademarks 634 300 334 634 78 556
Covenant not to compete 3,228 719 2,509 2,676 253 2,423
Below market leases 5,171 2,051 3,120 4,761 1,310 3,451
Total $93,538 $ 19,883 $73,655 $59,987 $ 12,982 $47,005

The aggregate amortization expense, including amortization of above and below market lease intangible assets which is classified as rent expense, was $2.4
million and $1.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 and $6.1 million and $3.2 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

See Note 3 for additional information on the acquisitions.

14



8. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,
2014 2013
Interest expense $ 161 $ 444
Professional fees 1,094 1,365
Equity-based incentive compensation (Note 15) 2,825 3,141
Taxes other than income 2,066 1,169
Management fees payable to affiliates 1,872 139
Acquisition costs 1,000 —
Other 4,021 1,750
Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 13,039 $ 8,008
9. Debt
Debt outstanding was as follows (in thousands):
September 30, December 31,
2014 2013

Revolving credit facility $ 145,555 $ 146,330
Financing associated with Rocky Top acquisition 26,250 26,250
Note payable 942 980
Total 172,747 173,560
Current portion 26,302 51
Long-term debt $ 146,445 $ 173,509

Credit Facility

In March 2014, the Partnership entered into an amended and restated credit agreement, which was amended and restated on September 30, 2014 (the “Credit
Facility”). The Credit Facility is a senior secured revolving credit facility maturing on March 4, 2019, with a total borrowing capacity of $550.0 million,
under which swing-line loans may be drawn up to $10.0 million and standby letters of credit may be issued up to an aggregate of $45.0 million. The Credit
Facility may be increased, from time to time, upon the Partnership’s written request, subject to certain conditions, up to an additional $100.0 million. All
obligations under the Credit Facility are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Partnership and its subsidiaries. The notional amount of availability at
September 30, 2014, was $388.1 million. As a result of the composition of lenders changing with this amendment, deferred financing costs of $0.3 million
were written off during the three months ended September 30, 2014.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest, at the Partnership’s option, at (1) a rate equal to the London Interbank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”), for
interest periods of one week or one, two, three or six months, plus a margin of 2.00% to 3.25% per annum, depending on the Partnership’s total leverage ratio
(as defined) or (2) (a) a base rate equal to the greatest of: (i) the federal funds rate, plus 0.5%, (ii) LIBOR for one month interest periods, plus 1.00% per
annum or (iii) the rate of interest established by the agent, from time to time, as its prime rate, plus (b) a margin of 1.00% to 2.25% per annum depending on
the Partnership’s total leverage ratio. In addition, the Partnership incurs a commitment fee based on the unused portion of the revolving credit facility at a rate
of 0.35% to 0.50% per annum depending on the Partnership’s total leverage ratio. The weighted-average interest rate on outstanding borrowings at
September 30, 2014, was 3.5%. Letters of credit outstanding at September 30, 2014, and December 31, 2013, totaled $16.4 million and $12.3 million,
respectively.

The Partnership is required to comply with certain financial covenants under the Credit Facility. Effective July 2, 2014, the Partnership is required to maintain
a total leverage ratio (as defined) for the most recently completed four fiscal quarters of less than or equal to 5.50:1.00 for the period of April 1, 2014, through
September 30, 2014; and 5.00:1.00 for the period of October 1, 2014, through December 31, 2014, and 4.50:1.00 for periods thereafter, except for periods
following a material acquisition. However, if an offering of Equity Interests (as defined) in the Partnership occurs after July 2, 2014, but prior to

December 31, 2014, the total leverage ratio shall not exceed 4.50:1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2014; and the total leverage ratio shall not
exceed 5.00:1.00 for the first two full fiscal quarters following the closing of a material acquisition or 5.50 : 1:00 upon the issuance of Qualified Senior Notes
(as defined) in the aggregate principal amount of $175.0 million or greater. The Partnership is also required to maintain a senior leverage ratio (as defined)
after the issuance of Qualified Senior Notes of $175.0 million or greater of less than or equal to 3.00:1.00 and a consolidated interest coverage ratio (as
defined) of at least 2.75 to 1.00.
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The Credit Facility prohibits the Partnership from making distributions to its unitholders if any potential default or event of default occurs or would result
from the distribution, or the Partnership is not in compliance with its financial covenants. In addition, the Credit Facility contains various covenants which
may limit, among other things, the Partnership’s ability to grant liens; create, incur, assume, or suffer to exist other indebtedness; or make any material change
to the nature of the Partnership’s business, including mergers, liquidations, and dissolutions; and make certain investments, acquisitions or dispositions.

10. Operating Leases
Operating Leases of Sites as Lessee

The Partnership leases sites from third parties under certain non-cancelable operating leases that expire from time to time through 2028.

The future minimum lease payments under operating leases as of September 30, 2014, were as follows (in thousands):

Remaining in 2014 $ 5,880
2015 17,814
2016 15,577
2017 14,037
2018 12,188
Thereafter 69,938
Total future minimum lease payments $135,434

The future minimum lease payments presented above do not include contingent rent based on future inflation, future revenues or volumes, or amounts that
may be paid as reimbursements for certain operating costs incurred by the lessor. Most lease agreements include provisions for renewals.

Getty Lease

In May 2012, the Predecessor Entity entered into a 15-year master lease agreement with renewal options of up to an additional 20 years with Getty. Pursuant
to the lease, the Predecessor Entity leased 105 gas station sites in Massachusetts, New Hampshire and Maine (the “New England Sites”). The lease was
assigned to the Partnership in November 2012 and has been amended to add an additional 25 sites in New Jersey and one site in Delaware and one site in
Maryland. The Partnership pays fixed rent, which increases 1.5% per year. In addition, the lease requires contingent rent payments based on gallons of fuel
sold. During the initial three years of the lease, the Partnership is required to make capital expenditures of at least $4.3 million plus $0.01 per gallon of fuel
sold at the New England Sites. However, the Partnership is entitled to a rent credit equal to 50% of the capital expenditures up to a maximum of $2.1 million.
During the initial 3.5 years of the lease, the Partnership is required to make capital expenditures of at least $1.0 million at the New Jersey sites.

Because the fair value of the land at lease inception was estimated to represent more than 25.0% of the total fair value of the real property subject to the lease,
the land element of the lease was analyzed for operating or capital treatment separately from the rest of the property subject to the lease. The land element of
the lease was classified as an operating lease and all of the other property was classified as a capital lease. As such, future minimum lease payments are
included in both the lease financing obligations and operating lease tables above.

Through September 30, 2014, eight sites have been terminated from the lease and the Partnership notified Getty of its intent to terminate six additional sites
from the lease. Any property and equipment or lease financing obligations associated with these sites were removed from the balance sheet, which resulted in
a gain of $0.2 million and $0.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 and $0.3 million and $0.3 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which is classified as a reduction of rent expense.
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Operating Leases of Sites as Lessor

Motor fuel stations are leased to tenants under operating leases with various expiration dates ranging through 2028.

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with third parties and operating leases with LGO as of September 30, 2014, were
as follows (in thousands):

Third Parties LGO Total
Remaining in 2014 $ 5,053 $ 3,194 $ 8,247
2015 16,338 12,881 29,219
2016 13,110 13,074 26,184
2017 8,533 13,271 21,804
2018 6,049 13,470 19,519
Thereafter 22,459 132,671 155,130
Total future minimum lease payments $ 71,542 $188,561 $260,103

The future minimum lease payments presented above do not include contingent rent based on future inflation, future revenues or volumes of the lessee, or
amounts that may be received as tenant reimbursements for certain operating costs. Most lease agreements include provisions for renewals.

On May 28, 2014, the Partnership entered into a Master Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) with LGO, with an effective date of June 1, 2014 which consolidated
all of the individual leases then in effect into a single master lease. The terms and conditions of the Lease are substantially identical to the existing individual
leases except as follows: the Partnership’s right to terminate each lease was deleted, and in its place, each party has the right to either sever, in the case of
LGO, up to 7.0% of the leased premises each year, or recapture, in the case of the Partnership, up to 5.0% of the leased premises each year from the Lease at
any time prior to the fifth anniversary of the commencement date (as defined) for such leased premises. Each party’s right is camulative in that if a party does
not sever or recapture, as applicable, the full amount of leased premises for which it has rights, then the non-utilized amount may be carried forward into
subsequent years. The Lease was approved by the former Conflicts Committee of the general partner of the Partnership.

11. Environmental Matters

The Partnership currently owns or leases sites where refined petroleum products are being or have been handled. These sites and the refined petroleum
products handled thereon may be subject to federal and state environmental laws and regulations. Under such laws and regulations, the Partnership could be
required to remove or remediate containerized hazardous liquids or associated generated wastes (including wastes disposed of or abandoned by prior owners
or operators), to remediate contaminated property arising from the release of liquids or wastes into the environment, including contaminated groundwater, or
to implement best management practices to prevent future contamination.

The Partnership maintains insurance of various types with varying levels of coverage that is considered adequate under the circumstances to cover operations
and properties. The insurance policies are subject to deductibles that are considered reasonable and not excessive. In addition, the Partnership has entered into
indemnification and/or escrow agreements with various sellers in conjunction with several of their respective acquisitions, as further described below.
Financial responsibility for environmental remediation is negotiated in connection with each acquisition transaction. In each case, an assessment is made of
potential environmental liability exposure based on available information. Based on that assessment and relevant economic and risk factors, a determination is
made whether to, and the extent to which the Partnership will, assume liability for existing environmental conditions.
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The table below presents a rollforward of the Partnership’s environmental liability for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, (in thousands):

2014 2013
Beginning balance $1,238 $1,177
Liabilities assumed in acquisitions 150 —
Changes in estimates for previously incurred losses 330 506
Payments (232) (289)
Ending balance 1,486 1,394
Current portion 601 424
Long-term portion $ 885 $ 970

At September 30, 2014, the Partnership was indemnified by third-party escrow funds, state funds or insurance totaling $1.5 million, which were recorded as
indemnification assets. State funds represent probable state reimbursement amounts. Reimbursement will depend upon the continued maintenance and
solvency of the state. Insurance coverage represents amounts deemed probable of reimbursement under insurance policies.

The estimates used in these liabilities were based on all known facts at the time and an assessment of the ultimate remedial action outcomes. The Partnership
will adjust loss accruals as further information becomes available or circumstances change. Among the many uncertainties that impact the estimates are the
necessary regulatory approvals for, and potential modifications of remediation plans, the amount of data available upon initial assessment of the impact of soil
or water contamination, changes in costs associated with environmental remediation services and equipment and the possibility of existing legal claims giving
rise to additional claims.

Environmental liabilities related to the contributed sites have not been assigned to the Partnership, and are still the responsibility of the Predecessor Entities
(see the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, for additional discussion of the Predecessor Entities). Under the Amended and
Restated Omnibus Agreement among the Partnership, DMI, LGO, Mr. Topper, and CST (the “Omnibus Agreement”), certain of the Predecessor Entities must
indemnify the Partnership for any costs or expenses that the Partnership incurs for environmental liabilities and third-party claims, regardless of when a claim
is made, that are based on environmental conditions in existence prior to the closing of the IPO for contributed sites. Certain of the Predecessor Entities are
beneficiaries of escrow accounts created to cover the cost to remediate certain environmental liabilities. In addition, certain of the Predecessor Entities
maintain insurance policies to cover environmental liabilities and/or, where available, participate in state programs that may also assist in funding the costs of
environmental liabilities. Certain sites that were contributed to the Partnership were identified as having existing environmental liabilities that are not covered
by escrow accounts, state funds or insurance policies. For more information on the Omnibus Agreement, see Note 20.

The table below presents a rollforward of the Predecessor Entities’ environmental liability for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, (in thousands):

2014
Beginning balance $18,259
Changes in estimates for previously incurred losses (627)
Payments (2,305)
Ending balance $15,327

A significant portion of the Predecessor Entities” environmental liabilities have corresponding indemnification assets. The composition of the indemnification
assets is as follows (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,

2014 2013
Third-party escrows $ 5,354 $ 6,707
State funds 2,569 3,210
Insurance coverage 5,178 5,460
Total indemnification assets $ 13,101 $ 15,377
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12. Commitments and Contingencies
Purchase Commitments
The future minimum volume purchase requirements under the existing supply agreements are approximate gallons, with a purchase price at prevailing market

rates for wholesale distribution. The following provides total future minimum volume purchase requirements (in thousands of gallons) for the following
years:

Remaining in 2014 103,357
2015 377,130
2016 316,979
2017 256,755
2018 242,089
Thereafter 2,540,753
Total 3,837,063

In the event the Partnership fails to purchase the required minimum volume during any given contract year, the underlying third party’s exclusive remedies
(depending on the magnitude of the failure) are generally termination of the supply agreement and, in some instances to a lesser extent, a financial penalty per
gallon based on the volume shortfall for the given year.

Legal Matters

In the normal course of business, the Partnership has and may become involved in legal actions relating to the ownership and operation of its properties and
business. In management’s opinion, the resolutions of any such pending legal actions are not expected to have a material adverse effect on its financial
position, results of operations and cash flows. The Partnership maintains liability insurance on certain aspects of its businesses in amounts deemed adequate
by management. However, there is no assurance that this insurance will be adequate to protect it from all material expenses related to potential future claims
or these levels of insurance will be available in the future at economically acceptable prices.

Environmental Matters

See Note 11 for a discussion of the Partnership and the Predecessor Entity’s environmental liabilities.

13. Fair Value Measurements

The Partnership measures and reports certain financial and non-financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). GAAP
specifies a three-level hierarchy that is used when measuring and disclosing fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices
available in active markets (i.e., observable inputs) and the lowest priority to data lacking transparency (i.e., unobservable inputs). An instrument’s
categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of significant input to its valuation. The following is a description of the three
hierarchy levels.

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.
Active markets are considered to be those in which transactions for the assets or liabilities occur in sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2  Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs which are observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term
of the asset or liability. This category includes quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets.

Level 3  Unobservable inputs are not corroborated by market data. This category is comprised of financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities whose fair value is estimated based on internally developed models or methodologies using significant inputs that are
generally less readily observable from objective sources.

Transfers into or out of any hierarchy level are recognized at the end of the reporting period in which the transfers occurred. There were no transfers between
any levels in 2014 or 2013.

As further discussed in Note 15, the Partnership has accrued for phantom units and profits interests granted as a liability and adjusts that liability on a
recurring basis based on the market price of the Partnership’s common units each balance sheet date. Such fair value measurements are deemed Level 1
measurements.
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Financial Instruments

The fair value of the Partnership’s accounts receivable and accounts payable approximated their carrying values as of September 30, 2014, and December 31,
2013, due to the short-term maturity of these instruments. The fair value of the Partnership’s long-term debt approximated its carrying value as of

September 30, 2014, and December 31, 2013, due to the frequency with which interest rates are reset based on changes in prevailing interest rates. The fair
value of debt, classified as a Level 2 measurement, was estimated using an income approach by discounting future cash flows at estimated current cost of
funding rates, which incorporate the credit risk of the Partnership.

14. Partners’ Capital

In March 2014, the Partnership issued 4,172 common units to certain members of the board of directors of the Partnership’s General Partner as part of their
2013 compensation.

In March 2014, 92,683 common units were issued (net of units withheld for income taxes) to employees of DMI as a result of the vesting of phantom units
(see Note 15 for additional information).

In September 2014, the Partnership issued 4,140,000 common units, inclusive of the underwriter’s over-allotment option, for $33.99 per unit, resulting in
proceeds of $135.0 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses. The Partnership used the proceeds to reduce indebtedness
outstanding under its Credit Facility.

See Note 20 for a discussion of the issuance of units as a result of accelerated vesting of equity-based incentive compensation awards upon the change in
control in October 2014.

15. Equity-Based Incentive Compensation

In connection with the IPO, the General Partner adopted the Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan (the “Plan”), a long-term incentive plan for
employees, officers, consultants and directors of the General Partner and any of its affiliates, including DMI, who perform services for the Partnership. The
maximum number of common units that may be delivered with respect to awards under the Plan is 1,505,000. Generally, the Plan provides for grants of
restricted units, unit options, performance awards, phantom units, profits interests, unit awards, unit appreciation rights, distribution equivalent rights, and
other unit-based awards, with various limits and restrictions attached to these awards on a grant-by-grant basis. The Plan is administered by the board of
directors of the Partnership’s General Partner or a committee thereof, which is referred to as the Plan Administrator.

The Plan Administrator may terminate or amend the Plan at any time with respect to any common units for which a grant has not yet been made. The Plan
Administrator also has the right to alter or amend the Plan or any part of the Plan from time to time, including increasing the number of common units that
may be granted, subject to unitholder approval as required by the exchange upon which common units are listed at that time; however, no change in any
outstanding grant may be made that would adversely affect the rights of a participant with respect to awards granted to a participant prior to the effective date
of such amendment or termination, except that the board of directors of our General Partner may amend any award to satisfy the requirements of

Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. The Plan will expire on the tenth anniversary of its approval, when common units are no longer available under
the Plan for grants or upon its termination by the Plan Administrator, whichever occurs first.

In March 2014, the Partnership contributed its investments in its operating subsidiaries and certain other assets and liabilities to LGP Operations LLC (“LGP
Operations”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Partnership. Also in March 2014, LGP Operations granted profits interests to certain employees of DMI,
which are represented by Class B Units in LGP Operations. Upon vesting, Class B Unitholders will be entitled to receive cash distributions proportionate to
those received by common unitholders. Class B Units are redeemable two years after they were granted, subject to certain limitations, for cash or common
units at the discretion of the board of directors of the General Partner.

Because the Class B Units are an interest in the equity of LGP Operations, they represent a noncontrolling interest from the perspective of the Partnership. As
such, the Class B Units are presented as a noncontrolling interest on the balance sheet and the Class B Unitholders’ interest in the net income of LGP
Operations is presented as net income attributable to noncontrolling interests on the statement of operations.
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Awards to Employees of Affiliates

The following is a summary of the award activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2014.

Phantom Profits
Units Interests
Non-vested at beginning of period 433,373 —
Granted 35,137 18,689
Forfeited (4,829) —
Vested (a) (143,954) —
Non-vested at end of period 319,727 18,689

(a)  Of the phantom units that vested during the nine months ended September 30, 2014, 51,271 common units were withheld for taxes.

Awards vest 33.0% on March 15 of the year following the year of grant, 33.0% on March 15 of the second year following the year of grant, and 34.0% on
March 15 of the third year following the year of grant.

The fair value of the non-vested awards outstanding at September 30, 2014, was $11.5 million. Compensation expense for the three months ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013 was $1.6 million and $1.2 million, and for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 was $3.6 million and $2.2
million, respectively. Unrecognized compensation expense related to the non-vested awards is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of
1.6 years.

It is the intent of the Partnership to settle the phantom units upon vesting by issuing common units and to settle the profits interests upon conversion by the
grantee by issuing common units, as permitted under the Plan. However, the awards may be settled in cash at the discretion of the board of directors of the
General Partner.

Because the Partnership grants awards to employees of DMI, and because the grants may be settled in cash, the grants are measured at fair value at each
balance sheet reporting date and the cumulative compensation cost recognized is classified as a liability, which is included in accrued expenses and other
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

See Note 20 for a discussion of the accelerated vesting of equity-based incentive compensation awards upon the change in control of the General Partner in
October 2014 and the October 2014 grant of phantom units.

Awards to Members of the Board of Directors

During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, the Partnership also granted the following awards to members of the board of directors of the General
Partner as a portion of director compensation:

Year of service 2013 2014 2014

Type of Award Profits Interests Phantom Units Profits Interests
Vesting 100% upon grant 100% on March 15, 2015 100% on March 15, 2015
Number of Awards 5,948 2,045 9,481

The fair value of the non-vested awards outstanding at September 30, 2014, was $0.4 million. Unrecognized compensation expense related to the non-vested
awards is expected to be recognized through December 31, 2014.

See Note 20 for a discussion of the accelerated vesting of equity-based incentive compensation awards upon the change in control in October 2014 and the
approval of a grant of phantom units that will occur in November 2014.

16. Income Taxes

As a limited partnership, the Partnership is not subject to federal and state income taxes. Income tax attributable to the Partnership’s taxable income, which
may differ significantly from income for financial statement purposes, is assessed at the individual level of the unitholder. The Partnership is subject to a
statutory requirement that non-qualifying income, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, cannot exceed 10.0% of total gross income for the calendar year.
If non-qualifying income exceeds this statutory limit, the Partnership would be taxed as a corporation. The non-qualifying income did not exceed the statutory
limit in any period.
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Certain activities that generate non-qualifying income are conducted through the Partnership’s wholly owned taxable corporate subsidiary, LGWS. Current
and deferred income taxes are recognized on the earnings of LGWS. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and are
measured using enacted tax rates.

As a result of the recognition of net deferred tax liabilities associated with the preliminary purchase price allocation related to the acquisition of PMI, the
Partnership released $5.2 million of its valuation allowance against deferred tax assets in the second quarter of 2014. Since the purchase price allocation is
preliminary, such release is subject to change and such change could be material. Further, in conjunction with the Partnership’s ongoing review of its actual
results and anticipated future earnings, the Partnership continuously reassesses the possibility of releasing the remaining $1.9 million valuation allowance on
its deferred tax assets. It is reasonably possible that a significant portion of the valuation allowance will be released within the next twelve months. The
valuation allowance release was partially offset by the impact of certain nondeductible acquisition costs and the taxable gain on the sale of the Lubricants
Business for which a portion related to nondeductible goodwill.

At June 30, 2013, net deferred tax assets totaling $10.4 million were fully reserved against with a valuation allowance. During the third quarter of 2013, based
on the updates to the purchase price allocation for the Express Lane acquisition and the assignment of property and equipment by the Partnership to LGWS,
the Partnership recorded a net deferred tax liability of $5.9 million. Concurrent with the recognition of this deferred tax liability, and based on the expected
reversal of the cumulative temporary differences and anticipated future earnings as of September 30, 2013, the Partnership released $0.9 million and

$0.3 million of the valuation allowance during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013. This release was recorded as a deferred tax benefit,
effectively reversing all of the valuation allowance that was recorded to deferred tax expense in 2012 and through June 30, 2013.

17. Net Income per Limited Partnership Unit

Under the Partnership Agreement, the holder of the Partnership’s IDRs have an interest in distributions from the Partnership that are increasing percentages
starting at 15% of quarterly distributions out of the operating surplus (as defined) in excess of $0.5031 per limited partner unit. The Partnership’s
undistributed net income is generally allocable pro rata to the common and subordinated unitholders, except where common unitholders have received cash
distributions in excess of the subordinated unitholders. In that circumstance, net income is allocated to the common unitholders first in support of such excess
cash distribution paid to them and the remainder of the net income is allocable pro rata to the common and subordinated unitholders. Losses are generally
allocable pro rata to the common and subordinated unitholders in accordance with the Partnership Agreement unless a loss would create, or increase a
Partnership deficit balance, then the loss would be allocated to the General Partner.

In addition to the common and subordinated units, the Partnership has identified the IDRs as participating securities and computes income per unit using the
two-class method under which any excess of distributions declared over net income shall be allocated to the partners based on their respective sharing of
income specified in the Partnership Agreement. Net income per unit applicable to limited partners (including common and subordinated unitholders) is
computed by dividing the limited partners’ interest in net income, after deducting any incentive distributions, by the weighted-average number of outstanding
common and subordinated units. There were no participating IDRs for 2013. However, the distributions declared since March 2014 exceeded the threshold
and so IDRs participated in these distributions as summarized on the statements of operations.
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The following provides a reconciliation of net income and the allocation of net income to the limited partners’ interest for purposes of computing net income

per limited partner unit for the following periods (in thousands, except unit, and per unit amounts):

Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

Common Subordinated
Units Units
Numerator:
Distributions paid (a) $ 5,849 $ 3,931
Allocation of distributions in excess of net income (b) (3,370) (2,319)
Limited partners’ interest in net income-basic $ 2,479 $ 1,612
Adjustment for phantom units 1 —
Limited partners’ interest in net income-diluted $ 2,480 $ 1,612
Denominator:
Weighted average limited partnership units
outstanding-basic 11,824,203 7,525,000
Adjustment for phantom units 9,895 —
Weighted average limited partnership units
outstanding-diluted 11,834,098 7,525,000
Net income per limited partnership unit-basic $ 0.21 $ 0.21
Net income per limited partnership unit-diluted $ 0.21 $ 0.21
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014
Common Subordinated
Units Units
Numerator:
Distributions paid (a) $ 17,323 $ 11,645
Allocation of distributions in excess of net income (b) (12,899) (8,720)
Limited partners’ interest in net income-basic 4,424 2,925
Adjustment for phantom units 11 —
Limited partners’ interest in net income-diluted $ 4,435 $ 2,925
Denominator:
Weighted average limited partnership units
outstanding-basic 11,380,612 7,525,000
Adjustment for phantom units 64,778 —
Weighted average limited partnership units
outstanding-diluted 11,445,390 7,525,000
Net income per limited partnership unit-basic $ 0.39 $ 0.39
Net income per limited partnership unit-diluted $ 0.39 $ 0.39

Three Months Ended September 30, 2013

Common Subordinated
Units Units
$ 3,782 $ 3,781
(1,320) (1,319)
$ 2,462 $ 2,462
$ 2,462 $ 2,462
7,526,044 7,525,000
7,526,044 7,525,000
$ 0.33 $ 0.33
$ 0.33 $ 0.33
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013
Common Subordinated
Units Units
$ 10,781 $ 10,780
(3,706) (3,705)
7,075 7,075
$ 7,075 $ 7,075
7,525,983 7,525,000
7,525,983 7,525,000
$ 0.94 $ 0.94
$ 0.94 $ 0.94

(a) Distributions paid per unit were $0.5225 and $0.4775 per unit for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, and $1.5475 and $1.2248 for

the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(b) Allocation of distributions in excess of net income is based on a pro rata proportion to the common and subordinated units as outlined in the Partnership

Agreement.

In November 2014, the Partnership declared a quarterly distribution, to be paid from the operating surplus, totaling $12.2 million or $0.5325 per unit.
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18. Related-Party Transactions
Revenues from Fuel Sales to LGO

In connection with the IPO, the Partnership and LGO entered into a PMPA Franchise Agreement pursuant to which the Partnership is the exclusive distributor
of motor fuel to all sites operated by LGO for a period of 15 years. The Partnership has the right to impose the brand of fuel that is distributed to LGO. There
are no minimum volume requirements that LGO is required to satisfy. The Partnership charges LGO the “dealer tank wagon” prices for each grade of product
in effect at the time title to the product passes to LGO. Revenues and cost of revenues from fuel sales to LGO are separately classified in the statements of
operations.

See Note 20 for information regarding the October 2014 amendment of the PMPA Franchise Agreement.

Revenues from Fuel Sales to Related Parties

In addition, the Partnership distributes motor fuel and leases property to a related party of the Chief Executive Officer of the General Partner. Total revenues
amounted to $24.7 million and $27.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 and $75.6 million and $78.4 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Accounts receivable amounted to $1.6 million and $1.1 million as of September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively.

Operating Leases of Gasoline Stations as Lessor

The Partnership leases certain motor fuel stations to LGO under operating leases. See Note 10 for additional details. Rent income under these agreements is
separately classified in the statements of operations.

Operating Leases of Gasoline Stations as Lessee

The Partnership leases certain motor fuel stations from related parties under operating leases cancelable by the Partnership. Rent expense under these
agreements was $0.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 and $0.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and
2013.

Management Fees

In connection with the acquisitions of PMI and Atlas discussed previously, the Partnership amended its Omnibus Agreement with regards to the management
fee payable by the Partnership to DMI effective July 1, 2014. The revised management fee consists of a base monthly fee of $670,000 per month and a
variable fee of between zero and $0.003 per gallon for wholesale fuel distribution and $0.015 per gallon for retail fuel distribution at sites operated by the
Partnership. DMI may waive all or any portion of the management fee to the extent that all or a portion of the management services are either purchased from
another party or not required.

The Partnership incurred $2.7 million and $1.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 and $6.1 million and $5.0 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, in management fees under the Omnibus Agreement which was classified as selling, general
and administrative expenses in the statements of operations.

Effective July 1, 2014, the Partnership entered into a sublease with DMI whereby the Partnership is responsible for paying 54.0% of the required rent
payments under the DMI lease as rent for its corporate offices. The term of the sublease is 15 years. Annual rent payments under this lease are $0.3 million.
Since the management fee paid by the Partnership to DMI pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement incorporates rent for office space, no incremental expense will
be incurred by the Partnership.

See Note 20 for information regarding the October 2014 amendment and restatement of the Omnibus Agreement.

Commencing with the PMI acquisition, the Partnership incurred management fees with an affiliate for payroll and related benefits of $5.8 million and $8.7
million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively, which was classified as operating expenses and selling, general and
administrative expenses in the statement of operations.

As discussed in Note 3, the Partnership caused PMI to divest the Lubricants Business to Zimri. There is a transition services agreement under which PMI
provides services to Zimri. PMI charged Zimri $0.2 million and $0.5 million for such services for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014,
respectively, classified as a reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses in the statement of operations. As part of the transition services
agreement, the Partnership advanced $4.5 million to Zimri for working capital purposes, of which $3.0 million was repaid in the third quarter of 2014.
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Maintenance and Environmental Costs

Certain maintenance and environmental monitoring and remediation activities are undertaken by a related party of the Partnership as approved by the former
conflicts committee of the board of directors of the General Partner. The Partnership incurred $0.4 million and $0.9 million with this related party for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively.

Aircraft Usage

The Partnership uses aircraft owned by a group of individuals that includes the CEO and certain other members of the board of directors of the General
Partner as approved by the disinterested members of the former conflicts committee of the board of directors of the General Partner. The Partnership incurred
$0.1 million and $0.2 million for the use of these aircraft for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, respectively.

19. Segment Reporting

Effective September 1, 2013, the Partnership engages in both the wholesale and retail distribution of motor fuels, primarily gasoline and diesel fuel. Effective
with the PMI Transaction, the Partnership now also engages in the operation of convenience stores and branded quick-service restaurants. Given these
changes, the Partnership is deemed to conduct its business in two segments: 1) the wholesale segment and 2) the retail segment. The Partnership’s measure of
segment profit or loss is net income. Unallocated costs consist primarily of interest expense associated with the Credit Facility, selling, general and
administrative expenses, income taxes and the elimination of the retail segment’s intersegment cost of revenues from fuel sales against the wholesale
segment’s intersegment revenues from fuel sales. The profit in ending inventory generated by the intersegment fuel sale is also eliminated. Total assets by
segment are not presented as the chief operating decision maker does not currently assess performance or allocate resources based on that data. Financial data
for each segment is as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended September, 30, 2014

Wholesale Retail Unallocated Consolidated
Revenues from fuel sales to external customers $ 634,400 $158,614 $ — $ 793,014
Intersegment revenues from fuel sales 59,029 — (59,029) —
Revenues from food and merchandise sales — 28,588 — 28,588
Rent income 9,529 1,300 — 10,829
Other revenue (61) 372 — 311
Total revenues 702,897 188,874 (59,029) 832,742
Net income (loss) 13,544 551 (9,932) 4,163

Nine Months Ended September, 30, 2014

Wholesale Retail Unallocated Consolidated
Revenues from fuel sales to external customers $1,673,914 $329,145 $ — $2,003,059
Intersegment revenues from fuel sales 159,077 — (159,077) —
Revenues from food and merchandise sales — 45,837 — 45,837
Rent income 28,856 3,431 — 32,287
Other revenue 380 391 — 771
Total revenues 1,862,227 378,804 (159,077) 2,081,954
Net income (loss) 32,408 1,358 (26,283) 7,483

Three Months Ended September, 30, 2013

Wholesale Retail Unallocated Consolidated
Revenues from fuel sales to external customers $ 462,741 $ 17,232 $ — $ 479,973
Intersegment revenues from fuel sales 15,813 — (15,813) —
Revenues from food and merchandise sales — — — —
Rent income 9,773 332 — 10,105
Other revenue 462 34 — 496
Total revenues 488,789 17,598 (15,813) 490,574
Net income (loss) 10,884 301 (6,261) 4,924
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Nine Months Ended September, 30, 2013

Wholesal Retail Unallocated Consolidated
Revenues from fuel sales to external customers $1,401,333 $17,232 $ — $1,418,565
Intersegment revenues from fuel sales 15,813 — (15,813) —
Revenues from food and merchandise sales — — — —
Rent income 30,307 332 — 30,639
Other revenue 1,393 34 — 1,427
Total revenues 1,448,846 17,598 (15,813) 1,450,631
Net income (loss) 32,811 301 (18,962) 14,150

20. Subsequent Events

On October 1, 2014, the Partnership and CST announced the consummation of the previously announced sale to CST of the Partnership’s General Partner
from DMI, an entity wholly owned by the Topper Trust for which Joseph V. Topper, Jr. is the trustee, and all of the membership interests in limited liability
companies formed by trusts for which each of Mr. Topper and John B. Reilly, III serves as trustee, which limited liability companies own all of the IDRs. CST
is one of the largest independent retailers of motor fuels and convenience merchandise in North America.

The General Partner manages the operations and activities of the Partnership. The Partnership is managed and operated by the board of directors and
executive officers of the General Partner. As a result of the consummation of the General Partner Acquisition, CST controls the General Partner and has the
right to appoint all members of the board of directors of the General Partner.

Immediately following the consummation of the General Partner Acquisition, the Partnership changed its name to “CrossAmerica Partners LP” and began

trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CAPL. The following events took place in connection with the consummation of the General
Partner Acquisition:

Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement

The Partnership entered into an Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2014, by and among the Partnership, the General Partner,
DMI, CST Services LLC, an affiliate of CST (the “Company”), LGO and Mr. Topper (the “Amended Omnibus Agreement”), which amends and restates the
Original Omnibus Agreement. The terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement were approved by the former conflicts committee of the board of directors of
the General Partner, which is comprised solely of independent directors.

General. Pursuant to the Amended Omnibus Agreement, the Company agrees, among other things, to provide, or cause to be provided, to the Partnership the
management services previously provided by DMI on substantially the same terms and conditions as were applicable to DMI under the Original Omnibus
Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of a transition services agreement by and between DMI and the Company, DMI will continue to provide the management
services it provided under the Original Omnibus Agreement to the Partnership on behalf of the Company until December 31, 2014.

The initial term of the Amended Omnibus Agreement is five years and will automatically renew for additional one year terms unless any party provides
written notice to the other parties 180 days prior to the end of the then current term. The Partnership has the right to terminate the agreement at any time upon
180 days’ prior written notice.

Rights of First Refusal. The Amended Omnibus Agreement provides that Mr. Topper, DMI and LGO agree, and are required to cause their controlled
affiliates to agree, that for so long as Mr. Topper is an officer or director of the General Partner or CST, if (a) Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or any of their
controlled affiliates have the opportunity to acquire assets used, or a controlling interest in any business primarily engaged, in the wholesale motor fuel
distribution or retail gas station operation businesses, and (b) the assets or businesses proposed to be acquired have a value exceeding $5.0 million in the
aggregate, then Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or their controlled affiliates will offer such acquisition opportunity to the Partnership and give the Partnership a
reasonable opportunity to acquire, at the same price plus any related transaction costs and expenses, such assets or business, either before or promptly after
the consummation of such acquisition by Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or their controlled affiliates. The decision to acquire or not acquire any such assets or
businesses requires the approval of the conflicts committee of the board of directors of the General Partner. Any assets or businesses that the Partnership does
not acquire pursuant to the right of first refusal may be acquired and operated by Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or their controlled affiliates.
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Rights of First Offer. The Amended Omnibus Agreement provides that Mr. Topper, DMI and LGO agree, and are required to cause their controlled affiliates
to agree, for so long as Mr. Topper is an officer or director of the General Partner or CST, to notify the Partnership of their desire to sell any of their assets or
businesses if (a) Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or any of their controlled affiliates, decides to attempt to sell (other than to another controlled affiliate of Mr. Topper,
DMI or LGO) any assets used, or any interest in any business primarily engaged, in the wholesale motor fuel distribution or retail gas station operation
businesses, to a third party and (b) the assets or businesses proposed to be sold have a value exceeding $5.0 million in the aggregate. Prior to selling such
assets or businesses to a third party, Mr. Topper, DMI and LGO are required to negotiate with the Partnership exclusively and in good faith for a reasonable
period of time in order to give the Partnership an opportunity to enter into definitive documentation for the purchase and sale of such assets or businesses on
terms that are mutually acceptable to Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or their controlled affiliates, and the Partnership. If the Partnership and Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO,
or their controlled affiliates have not entered into a letter of intent or a definitive purchase and sale agreement with respect to such assets or businesses within
such period, Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, and their controlled affiliates, have the right to sell such assets or businesses to a third party following the expiration of
such period on any terms that are acceptable to Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or their controlled affiliates, and such third party. The decision to acquire or not to
acquire assets or businesses pursuant to this right requires the approval of the conflicts committee of the board of directors of the General Partner.

Amendment to Wholesale Fuel Supply Agreement with LGO

A subsidiary of the Partnership entered into an Amendment to the PMPA Franchise Agreement, effective as of October 1, 2014, by and between LGW, a
subsidiary of the Partnership, and LGO (the “Wholesale Fuel Supply Agreement Amendment”) pursuant to which the pricing terms were amended. Prior to
the Wholesale Fuel Supply Agreement Amendment, the agreement provided that the Partnership charge LGO dealer tank wagon pricing, which provided for a
variable cent-per-gallon margin for each grade of product in effect at the time title to the product passed to LGO. The Wholesale Fuel Supply Agreement
Amendment amends the pricing terms of the agreement to provide for rack plus pricing and was approved by the former conflicts committee of the board of
directors of the General Partner. This pricing change is not expected to have a material impact on net income over the remaining term of the agreement.

Voting Agreement

Mr. Topper entered into a Voting Agreement dated as of October 1, 2014, by and among Mr. Topper, the Topper Trust, DMI, an entity wholly owned by the
Topper Trust for which Mr. Topper is the trustee (collectively, the “Topper Sellers”) and CST (the “Voting Agreement”) pursuant to which each of the Topper
Sellers agrees that at any meeting of the holders of shares of CST common stock or common units or subordinated units of the Partnership it will vote or
cause to be voted such Topper Seller’s shares or units, respectively, in accordance with the recommendation of the board of directors of CST or the board of
directors of the General Partner, respectively. The Voting Agreement will remain in effect with respect to any Topper Seller for so long as any such Topper
Seller is (a) a director or officer of CST or affiliate thereof, including the Partnership, (b) the beneficial owner of more than 3% of the outstanding common
stock of CST or (c) the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the outstanding common units or subordinated units of the Partnership.

Board of Directors

On and effective as of October 1, 2014, Melinda B. German, Warren S. Kimber, Jr., John F. Malloy, Maura E. Topper and Robert L. Wiss, each a member of
the board of directors of the General Partner, resigned in his or her capacity as such. Mr. Topper and Mr. Reilly remain members of the board of directors of
the General Partner. CST has agreed to cause the appointment of Mr. Topper as a director of the General Partner for a period of at least five years
commencing on October 1, 2014 or until a change in control of CST including circumstances in which CST no longer controls the General Partner. Further,
Mr. Topper may be removed from the board of directors of the General Partner in certain circumstances where cause exists.

On and effective as of October 1, 2014, CST as the owner of the General Partner appointed each of the following as members to the board of directors of the
General Partner: Kimberly S. Lubel, Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the board of directors of CST, Clayton E. Killinger, Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of CST, and Stephan F. Motz, Senior Vice President and Chief Development Officer of CST, as directors of the board of
directors of the General Partner, and Gene Edwards and Justin A. Gannon as independent directors of the board of directors of the General Partner.

Employment Agreement

Mr. Topper and the Company entered into an employment agreement dated as of October 1, 2014 (the “Topper Employment Agreement”), pursuant to which
Mr. Topper was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and President of the General Partner. The Topper Employment Agreement has a term of one year
and will automatically renew for an additional one year term unless the parties agree otherwise or either party gives 60-day written notice prior to the end of
the initial term. Mr. Topper’s base salary is $525,000 per year. He is eligible to receive a short-term incentive award equal to 75% of his base salary and an
equity award equal to 200% of his base salary. Mr. Topper is entitled to participate in all employee benefit plans and programs generally available to similarly
situated executives of the Company. The Company may terminate Mr. Topper’s employment at any time for any reason.
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Per the terms of the Topper Employment Agreement, Mr. Topper agrees that, during his employment and for a period equal to the greater of (i) the balance of
his employment term and (ii) one year following termination for cause or his resignation without good reason (the “Restricted Period”), (x) he will not solicit
or in any way be involved with any prior, current or prospective customer, client, consultant, broker or business partner of, or any person who had dealings
with, the Company or the Partnership and (y) he will not solicit for employment any person who is or was within the preceding six months an employee or
consultant of the Company or the Partnership. Per the terms of the Topper Employment Agreement, during the Restricted Period, Mr. Topper also agrees that
he will not associate in any way with any business that at any time during the Restricted Period is engaged in the business of the Company or the Partnership
other than those activities and businesses that Mr. Topper controls as of October 1, 2014.

Because effective as of October 1, 2014, Mr. Topper is an employee of CST and no longer an employee of DMI, the disinterested members of the former
board of directors of the General Partner authorized a grant of 5,670 profits interests pursuant to the Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan to
Mr. Topper, based on compensation earned by Mr. Topper for services rendered from January 1, 2014 through September 30, 2014. The profits interests are to
vest on November 10, 2014, entitle the recipient to receive cash distributions proportionate to those received by common unitholders of the Partnership and
represent Class B Units in LGP Operations LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Partnership.

Sale of Wholesale Fuel Supply Contracts and Assignment of Leases to DMI

The Partnership, DMI and LGO consummated a series of transactions pursuant to which DMI acquired, for an aggregate purchase price of $5.7 million and an
earn-out in the amount of $0.8 million if DMI renews a certain customer contract, the wholesale fuel supply rights for 78 locations in Pennsylvania and New
York previously supplied by the Partnership and the fuel supply rights of the Partnership to such sites was terminated. In addition, subleases for 12 of the
sites, previously leased to the Partnership, were assigned to DMI or its affiliates. The terms of the transaction were approved by the former conflicts
committee of the board of directors of the General Partner, which was comprised solely of independent directors. The volume associated with these sites for
2013 was approximately 94 million gallons, of which approximately 36 million gallons represents sales to a sub-wholesaler at a de minimus margin and
approximately 28 million gallons relates to a contract with a single customer for which the contract expires in 2015. In addition, rent expense for the leasehold
sites included in the transaction exceeded the rent income on an annual basis by approximately $0.6 million for 2013.

Because this was a transaction between entities under common control, the Partnership derecognized the assets and liabilities associated with the wholesale
fuel supply contracts and leases and recognized the approximate $2.1 million excess of the purchase price over the net book value of the net assets divested as
a contribution to partners’ capital on October 1, 2014.

Accelerated Vesting

In connection with the change in control of the General Partner upon the closing of the General Partner Acquisition as specified in the Lehigh Gas Partners
LP Executive Income Continuity Plan, all unvested awards held by covered persons vested on October 1, 2014. As a result, 167,535 phantom units and 9,622
profits interests granted to employees of DMI vested. Upon the vesting of the phantom units, 101,456 common units were issued, net of units withheld for
income taxes.

In addition, 2,045 phantom units and 15,429 profits interests granted to members of the board of directors vested on October 1, 2014. Upon the vesting of the
phantom units, 2,045 common units were issued.

The incremental charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2014 associated with the accelerated vesting of all these grants was approximately $4.6 million.

Grant of Phantom Units

On October 1, 2014, the Partnership issued 97,043 phantom units to employees of DMI. These units vest in one-third increments annually starting March 15,
2015. In addition, all unvested outstanding awards to certain employees of DMI were modified such that if within two years of a change in control, the
employee is terminated involuntarily or the employee terminates his or her service due to a material reduction in base salary or a requirement to relocate his
or her primary place of employment more than a specified distance from his or her current principal place of residence, then the awards will vest immediately
and the employee will be paid as specified in the agreements.

In addition, in October 2014, the board of directors approved that on November 10, 2014, phantom units with a fair market value of $70,000 will be granted
to the non-employee members of the board of directors as a part of director compensation. Such grants will vest November 10, 2015.

Nice N Easy Acquisition

CST had previously entered into an agreement to purchase, effective November 1, 2014 (the “Closing Date”), the convenience store assets, franchisor rights,
and associated trademarks of Nice N Easy Grocery Shoppes, located in central New York with a concentration in the Syracuse, NY region. Effective on the
Closing Date, CST assigned the real property, including underground storage tanks and canopies, to LGWS and the related fuel distribution agreements to
LGW, for aggregate cash consideration of $65.0 million (the “Purchase Price”). In addition, LGWS entered into a lease with a subsidiary of CST for the
acquired real estate and LGW entered into a wholesale fuel distribution agreement with a subsidiary of CST. CST operates the sites and purchased the
working capital of the acquired assets.

The conflicts committee of the board of directors approved the Purchase Price, subject to adjustments in the allocation of the purchase price between CST and
the Partnership, to be settled no later than December 31, 2014, and the terms of the associated lease and wholesale fuel supply agreements.

The Partnership funded the Purchase Price with borrowings under its credit facility.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in this Quarterly Report.

Forward Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and oral statements made regarding the subjects of this Quarterly Report may contain forward-looking statements,
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, or the Reform Act, which may include, but are not limited to, statements
regarding our plans, objectives, expectations and intentions and other statements that are not historical facts, including statements identified by words such as
“outlook,” “i plans,” “estimates,” “believes,” “expects,” “potential,” “continues,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “approximately,” “predicts,”
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intends,
“anticipates,” “foresees,” or the negative version of these words or other comparable expressions. All statements addressing operating performance, events, or
developments that we expect or anticipate will occur in the future, including statements relating to revenue growth and earnings or earnings per unit growth,
as well as statements expressing optimism or pessimism about future operating results, are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Reform Act.
The forward-looking statements are based upon our current views and assumptions regarding future events and operating performance and are inherently
subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies and changes in circumstances, many of which are beyond our
control. The statements in this Quarterly Report are made as of the date of this report, even if subsequently made available by us on our website or otherwise.
We do not undertake any obligation to update or revise these statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date of this Quarterly Report.

Although we do not make forward-looking statements unless we believe we have a reasonable basis for doing so, we cannot guarantee their accuracy.
Achieving the results described in these statements involves a number of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially, including the following factors:

*  Availability of cash flow to pay minimum quarterly distribution on our common units;

»  The availability and cost of competing motor fuels;

* Arise in fuel prices or a decrease in demand for motor fuels;

*  The consummation of financing, acquisition or disposition transactions and the effect thereof on our business;

*  Our existing or future indebtedness;

*  Our liquidity, results of operations and financial condition;

»  Future legislation and changes in regulations or governmental policies or changes in enforcement or interpretations thereof;
+  Future income tax legislation;

*  Changes in energy policy;

* Increases in energy conservation efforts;

+  Technological advances;

*  Volatility in the capital and credit markets;

*  The impact of worldwide economic and political conditions;

+  The impact of wars and acts of terrorism;

*  Weather conditions or catastrophic weather-related damage;

»  Earthquakes and other natural disasters;

»  Unexpected environmental liabilities;

*  The outcome of pending or future litigation;

»  CST’s business strategy and operations and CST’s conflicts of interest with us;

»  The ability of CST to successfully integrate our operations and employees, and realize anticipated synergies; and
»  Other factors, including those discussed in Item 1A. Risk Factors, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC.
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All written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us, or persons acting on our behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary
statements. You should evaluate all forward-looking statements made in this Quarterly Report in the context of these risks and uncertainties. We caution you
that the important factors referenced above may not contain all of the factors that are important to you.

Overview

We are a Delaware limited partnership formed to engage in the distribution of motor fuels, consisting of gasoline and diesel fuel, and to own and lease real
estate used in the retail distribution of motor fuels. Since our Predecessor was founded in 1992, we have generated revenues from the wholesale distribution
of motor fuels to retail sites and from real estate leases. In the third quarter of 2013, we also began generating revenues, on a select basis, through the retail
distribution of motor fuels at sites operated by commission agents and in the second quarter of 2014, as a result of the PMI Transaction, we began generating
revenues from the operation of convenience stores and branded quick-service restaurants.

Our primary business objective is to make quarterly cash distributions to our unitholders and, over time, to increase our quarterly cash distributions. We
intend to make minimum quarterly distributions of at least $0.4375 per unit, per quarter (or $1.75 per unit on an annualized basis). Our declared distributions
since May 2013 are summarized below:

Quarterly Annualized
Distribution Declared Distribution Distribution
May 2013 $ 0.4525 $ 1.81
August 2013 0.4775 1.91
November 2013 0.5025 2.01
March 2014 0.5125 2.05
May 2014 0.5125 2.05
August 2014 0.5225 2.09
November 2014 0.5325 2.13

The amount of any distributions is subject to the discretion of the board of directors of our General Partner which may modify or revoke our cash distribution
policy at any time. Our partnership agreement does not require us to pay any distributions.

We believe consistent demand for motor fuels in the areas where we operate and the contractual nature of our rent income provide a stable source of cash
flow. Cash flows from the wholesale distribution of motor fuels are generated primarily by a per gallon margin that is either a fixed or variable mark-up per
gallon, depending on our contract terms. By delivering motor fuels through independent carriers on the same day we purchase the motor fuels from suppliers,
we seek to minimize the commodity price risks typically associated with the purchase and sale of motor fuels. We also generate cash flows from rent income
primarily by collecting rent from lessee dealers, LGO and non-gas tenants pursuant to lease agreements, the retail distribution of motor fuel at sites operated
by the commission agents and the operation of convenience stores and branded, quick-service restaurants.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, we distributed an aggregate of approximately 269.4 million and 664.5 million gallons of motor
fuels, respectively. At September 30, 2014, we distributed motor fuels to 1,079 sites, comprised of the following classes of business:

» 429 sites operated by independent dealers;

+ 231 sites owned or leased by us and operated by LGO;

* 260 sites owned or leased by us and operated by lessee dealers;

» 72 sites owned or leased by us and operated by commission agents; and

» 87 sites owned or leased by us and operated by the Partnership.
In addition, we distribute motor fuels to 18 sub-wholesalers and sell various other products to commercial and residential customers.

Approximately 60% of the sites to which we distribute motor fuels are owned or leased by us. In addition, we have agreements requiring the operators of
these sites to purchase motor fuels from us.
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We are focused on owning and leasing sites primarily located in prime locations with strong motor fuel demand. We own and lease sites located in
Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Ohio, New York, Massachusetts, Kentucky, New Hampshire, Maine, Florida, Maryland, Delaware, Tennessee, Virginia, Illinois,
Indiana, and West Virginia. We also distribute motor fuel in Georgia and North Carolina. We believe the limited availability of undeveloped real estate,
particularly in the northeastern U.S., presents a high barrier to entry for new or existing retail gas station owners to develop competing sites.

Recent Developments
PMI Acquisition

On April 28, 2014, we exercised an option (“Option”) to purchase 100% of the membership interests of Pinehurst Petroleum, LLC (“Pinehurst”) from Joseph
L. Smith IIT and John A. Kopfer, Jr. (“Smith/Kopfer”) for $4.0 million. Pinehurst’s sole asset was an Agreement and Plan of Merger among Pinehurst, PMI
Merger Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pinehurst(“Sub”), Petroleum Marketers, Incorporated (“PMI”), Petroleum Marketers, Incorporated Employee
Stock Ownership Trust and Ronald R. Hare, in his capacity as representative (the “Merger Agreement”) pursuant to which Pinehurst agreed to acquire all of
the shares of PMI for $73.5 million inclusive of an adjustment for working capital, through the merger(“the Merger”) of Sub and PMI. Under the terms of the
Merger Agreement, the stockholders of PMI agreed to escrow $5.0 million for 25 months after the closing date to secure the indemnity provisions contained
in the Merger Agreement for the benefit of Pinehurst. The Merger Agreement also contains customary representations, warranties, agreements and obligations
of the parties, and termination, closing conditions and indemnity provisions. The transaction was funded with borrowings under our Partnership’s Credit
Facility. On April 30, 2014, pursuant to the Option, the Partnership purchased all of the equity interests of Pinehurst ($1.0 million of the consideration has
been included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities at September 30, 2014). Subsequent to such purchase, the Merger became effective and, as a
result, the Partnership became the owner of PMI. We sometimes refer to the exercise of the Option and the Merger as the PMI Transaction.

The acquisition augmented the Partnership’s presence in Virginia and complements the existing Tennessee operations. PMI operates two primary lines of
business: convenience stores and petroleum products distribution. In its convenience store business, PMI operates 87 convenience stores and nine co-located
branded quick service restaurants located in Virginia and West Virginia. The convenience stores distribute primarily branded fuel and operate under PMI’s
own proprietary convenience store brand, “Stop in Food Stores.” The petroleum products business distributes motor fuels and other petroleum products to
customers throughout Virginia, West Virginia, Tennessee and North Carolina.

On May, 1, 2014, immediately subsequent to the effectiveness of the Merger, we caused PMI to divest its lubricants business (the “Lubricants Business”) to
Zimri Holdings, LLC (“Zimri”), an entity owned by Smith/Kopfer for the sum of $14.0 million pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement (“APA”) between
PMI and Zimri. The APA contains customary representations, warranties, agreements and obligations of the parties, as well as indemnity provisions. A trust
controlled by Joseph V. Topper, Jr, Chairman and CEO of the general partner of the Partnership, personally financed the purchase of the Lubricants Business
by Zimri pursuant to a loan to Zimri. The financing by Mr. Topper’s trust was approved by the former Conflicts Committee of the board of directors of the
general partner of the Partnership.

Atlas Acquisition

On May 19, 2014, we completed our acquisition of 52 wholesale supply contracts, one sub-wholesaler contract, five fee sites, six leasehold sites and certain
other assets from affiliates of Atlas Oil Company (“Atlas”) for $34.0 million. In addition, we acquired certain short-term notes receivable associated with the
wholesale supply and commission marketing contracts for $5.2 million, bringing total consideration to $39.2 million, subject to closing adjustments. The
transaction was funded by borrowings under the credit facility and $4.0 million of proceeds from the sale of the Lubricants Business that were directed to an
escrow agent as part of a Section 1031 like-kind exchange.

These assets are located in the Chicago, Illinois area and are branded BP. The wholesale supply contracts have a remaining average term of 15 years and the
fee or leasehold sites are currently leased to third party commission agents. The short-term notes receivable relate to previously negotiated purchase
agreements of certain sites by the dealers occupying the locations. All of the notes receivable relate to sites supplied under contracts acquired in this
transaction. The notes receivable have a weighted average maturity of June 2015.

In connection with the acquisition, Sam Simon, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Atlas Oil Company, entered into a non-compete agreement that
generally restricts him and entities controlled by him from (a) engaging in the wholesale distribution of motor fuel or owning or operating a retail motor fuel
facility and/or convenience store within certain territories for one year after the closing date, and (b) constructing any new retail motor fuel facility and/or
convenience stores within certain territories for five years after the closing date.
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In connection with the acquisition of PMI and assets from certain affiliates of Atlas, we amended the Omnibus Agreement with our general partner and DMI
with regards to the management fee payable by us to DMI effective July 1, 2014. The revised management fee consists of a base monthly fee of $670,000 per
month and a variable fee of between zero and $0.003 per gallon for wholesale fuel distribution and $0.015 per gallon for retail fuel distribution at sites we
operate. The general partner and DMI may waive all or any portion of the management fee to the extent that all or a portion of the management services are
either purchased from another party or not required.

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

In March 2014, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement which was amended on September 30, 2014 (the “Credit Facility”). The Credit
Facility is a senior secured revolving credit facility maturing March 4, 2019 with a total borrowing capacity of $550.0 million, under which swing-line loans
may be drawn up to $10.0 million and standby letters of credit may be issued up to an aggregate of $45.0 million. The Credit Facility may be increased, from
time to time, upon our written request, subject to certain conditions, up to an additional $100.0 million. All obligations under the Credit Facility are secured
by substantially all of our assets. The notional amount of availability at September 30, 2014, was $388.1 million.

See “Liquidity and Capital Resources —Long-term Debt — Credit Facility” for additional information.

Equity Offering

In September 2014, we issued 4,140,000 common units, inclusive of the underwriter’s over-allotment option, for $33.99 per unit, resulting in proceeds of
$135.0 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses. We used the proceeds to reduce indebtedness outstanding under our
Credit Facility.

Subsequent Events

On October 1, 2014, we and CST announced the consummation of the previously announced sale to CST of the Partnership’s general partner, Lehigh Gas GP
LLC (the “General Partner”), from DMI, an entity wholly owned by the 2004 Irrevocable Trust of Joseph V. Topper, Sr. (the “Topper Trust”) for which Joseph
V. Topper, Jr. is the trustee, and all of the membership interests in limited liability companies formed by trusts for which each of Mr. Topper and John B.
Reilly, III serves as trustee, which limited liability companies own all of the IDRs (the “General Partner Acquisition”). CST is one of the largest independent
retailers of motor fuels and convenience merchandise in North America.

The General Partner manages the operations and activities of the Partnership. We are managed and operated by the board of directors and executive officers
of the General Partner. As a result of the consummation of the General Partner Acquisition, CST controls the General Partner and has the right to appoint all
members of the board of directors of the General Partner.

Immediately following the consummation of the General Partner Acquisition, the Partnership changed its name to “CrossAmerica Partners LP.” The
following events took place in connection with the consummation of the General Partner Acquisition:

Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement

We entered into an Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2014, by and among the Partnership, the General Partner, DMI, CST
Services LLC, an affiliate of CST (the “Company”), LGO and Mr. Topper (the “Amended Omnibus Agreement”), which amends and restates the Original
Omnibus Agreement. The terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement were approved by the former conflicts committee of the board of directors of the
General Partner, which is comprised solely of independent directors.

General. Pursuant to the Amended Omnibus Agreement, the Company agrees, among other things, to provide, or cause to be provided, to the Partnership the
management services previously provided by DMI on substantially the same terms and conditions as were applicable to DMI under the Original Omnibus
Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of a transition services agreement by and between DMI and the Company, DMI will continue to provide the management
services it provided under the Original Omnibus Agreement to us on behalf of the Company until December 31, 2014.

The initial term of the Amended Omnibus Agreement is five years and will automatically renew for additional one year terms unless any party provides
written notice to the other parties 180 days prior to the end of the then current term. We have the right to terminate the agreement at any time upon 180 days’
prior written notice.
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Rights of First Refusal. The Amended Omnibus Agreement provides that Mr. Topper, DMI and LGO agree, and are required to cause their controlled
affiliates to agree, that for so long as Mr. Topper is an officer or director of the General Partner or CST, if (a) Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or any of their
controlled affiliates have the opportunity to acquire assets used, or a controlling interest in any business primarily engaged, in the wholesale motor fuel
distribution or retail gas station operation businesses, and (b) the assets or businesses proposed to be acquired have a value exceeding $5.0 million in the
aggregate, then Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or their controlled affiliates will offer such acquisition opportunity to the Partnership and give us a reasonable
opportunity to acquire, at the same price plus any related transaction costs and expenses, such assets or business, either before or promptly after the
consummation of such acquisition by Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or their controlled affiliates. The decision to acquire or not acquire any such assets or
businesses requires the approval of the conflicts committee of the board of directors of the General Partner. Any assets or businesses that we do not acquire
pursuant to the right of first refusal may be acquired and operated by Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or their controlled affiliates.

Rights of First Offer. The Amended Omnibus Agreement provides that Mr. Topper, DMI and LGO agree, and are required to cause their controlled affiliates
to agree, for so long as Mr. Topper is an officer or director of the General Partner or CST, to notify us of their desire to sell any of their assets or businesses if
(a) Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or any of their controlled affiliates, decides to attempt to sell (other than to another controlled affiliate of Mr. Topper, DMI or
LGO) any assets used, or any interest in any business primarily engaged, in the wholesale motor fuel distribution or retail gas station operation businesses, to
a third party and (b) the assets or businesses proposed to be sold have a value exceeding $5.0 million in the aggregate. Prior to selling such assets or
businesses to a third party, Mr. Topper, DMI and LGO are required to negotiate with us exclusively and in good faith for a reasonable period of time in order
to give us an opportunity to enter into definitive documentation for the purchase and sale of such assets or businesses on terms that are mutually acceptable to
Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or their controlled affiliates, and the Partnership. If the Partnership and Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or their controlled affiliates have not
entered into a letter of intent or a definitive purchase and sale agreement with respect to such assets or businesses within such period, Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO,
and their controlled affiliates, have the right to sell such assets or businesses to a third party following the expiration of such period on any terms that are
acceptable to Mr. Topper, DMI, LGO, or their controlled affiliates, and such third party. The decision to acquire or not to acquire assets or businesses pursuant
to this right requires the approval of the conflicts committee of the board of directors of the General Partner.

Amendment to Wholesale Fuel Supply Agreement with LGO

We entered into an Amendment to the PMPA Franchise Agreement, effective as of October 1, 2014, by and between LGW, a subsidiary of the Partnership,
and LGO (the “Wholesale Fuel Supply Agreement Amendment”) pursuant to which the pricing terms were amended. Prior to the Wholesale Fuel Supply
Agreement Amendment, the agreement provided that we charge LGO dealer tank wagon pricing, which provided for a variable cent-per-gallon margin for
each grade of product in effect at the time title to the product passed to LGO. The Wholesale Fuel Supply Agreement Amendment amends the pricing terms
of the agreement to provide for rack plus pricing and was approved by the former conflicts committee of the board of directors of the General Partner. This
pricing change is not expected to have a material impact on net income over the remaining term of the agreement.

Voting Agreement

Mr. Topper entered into a Voting Agreement dated as of October 1, 2014, by and among Mr. Topper, the Topper Trust, DMI, an entity wholly owned by the
Topper Trust for which Mr. Topper is the trustee (collectively, the “Topper Sellers”) and CST (the “Voting Agreement”) pursuant to which each of the Topper
Sellers agrees that at any meeting of the holders of shares of CST common stock or common units or subordinated units of the Partnership it will vote or
cause to be voted such Topper Seller’s shares or units, respectively, in accordance with the recommendation of the board of directors of CST or the board of
directors of the General Partner, respectively. The Voting Agreement will remain in effect with respect to any Topper Seller for so long as any such Topper
Seller is (a) a director or officer of CST or affiliate thereof, including the Partnership, (b) the beneficial owner of more than 3% of the outstanding common
stock of CST or (c) the beneficial owner of 10% or more of our outstanding common units or subordinated units.

Board of Directors

On and effective as of October 1, 2014, Melinda B. German, Warren S. Kimber, Jr., John F. Malloy, Maura E. Topper and Robert L. Wiss, each a member of
the board of directors of the General Partner, resigned in his or her capacity as such. Mr. Topper and Mr. Reilly remain members of the board of directors of
the General Partner. CST has agreed to cause the appointment of Mr. Topper as a director of the General Partner for a period of at least five years
commencing on October 1, 2014 or until a change in control of CST including circumstances in which CST no longer controls the General Partner. Further,
Mr. Topper may be removed from the board of directors of the General Partner in certain circumstances where cause exists.
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On and effective as of October 1, 2014, CST as the owner of the General Partner appointed each of the following as members to the board of directors of the
General Partner: Kimberly S. Lubel, Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the board of directors of CST, Clayton E. Killinger, Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of CST, and Stephan F. Motz, Senior Vice President and Chief Development Officer of CST, as directors of the board of
directors of the General Partner, and Gene Edwards and Justin A. Gannon as independent directors of the board of directors of the General Partner.

Employment Agreement

Mr. Topper and the Company entered into an employment agreement dated as of October 1, 2014 (the “Topper Employment Agreement”), pursuant to which
Mr. Topper was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and President of the General Partner. The Topper Employment Agreement has a term of one year
and will automatically renew for an additional one year term unless the parties agree otherwise or either party gives 60-day written notice prior to the end of
the initial term. Mr. Topper’s base salary is $525,000 per year. He is eligible to receive a short-term incentive award equal to 75% of his base salary and an
equity award equal to 200% of his base salary. Mr. Topper is entitled to participate in all employee benefit plans and programs generally available to similarly
situated executives of the Company. The Company may terminate Mr. Topper’s employment at any time for any reason.

Per the terms of the Topper Employment Agreement, Mr. Topper agrees that, during his employment and for a period equal to the greater of (i) the balance of
his employment term and (ii) one year following termination for cause or his resignation without good reason (the “Restricted Period”), (x) he will not solicit
or in any way be involved with any prior, current or prospective customer, client, consultant, broker or business partner of, or any person who had dealings
with, the Company or the Partnership and (y) he will not solicit for employment any person who is or was within the preceding six months an employee or
consultant of the Company or the Partnership. Per the terms of the Topper Employment Agreement, during the Restricted Period, Mr. Topper also agrees that
he will not associate in any way with any business that at any time during the Restricted Period is engaged in the business of the Company or the Partnership
other than those activities and businesses that Mr. Topper controls as of October 1, 2014.

Because effective as of October 1, 2014, Mr. Topper is an employee of CST and no longer an employee of DMI, the disinterested members of the former
board of directors of the General Partner authorized a grant of 5,670 profits interests pursuant to the Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan to
Mr. Topper, based on compensation earned by Mr. Topper for services rendered from January 1, 2014 through September 30, 2014. The profits interests are to
vest on November 10, 2014, entitle the recipient to receive cash distributions proportionate to those received by our common unitholders and represent

Class B Units in LGP Operations LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Partnership.

Sale of Wholesale Fuel Supply Contracts and Assignment of Leases to DMI

The Partnership, DMI and LGO consummated a series of transactions pursuant to which DMI acquired, for an aggregate purchase price of $5.7 million and an
earn-out in the amount of $0.8 million if DMI renews a certain customer contract, the wholesale fuel supply rights for 78 locations in Pennsylvania and New
York previously supplied by the Partnership and the fuel supply rights of the Partnership to such sites was terminated. In addition, subleases for 12 of the
sites, previously leased to the Partnership, were assigned to DMI or its affiliates. The terms of the transaction were approved by the former conflicts
committee of the board of directors of the General Partner, which was comprised solely of independent directors. The volume associated with these sites for
2013 was approximately 94 million gallons, of which approximately 36 million gallons represents sales to a sub-wholesaler at a de minimus margin and
approximately 28 million gallons relates to a contract with a single customer for which the contract expires in 2015. In addition, rent expense for the leasehold
sites included in the transaction exceeded the rent income on an annual basis by approximately $0.6 million for 2013.

Because this was a transaction between entities under common control, we derecognized the assets and liabilities associated with the wholesale fuel supply
contracts and leases and recognized the approximate $2.1 million excess of the purchase price over the net book value of the net assets divested as a
contribution to partners’ capital.

Accelerated Vesting

In connection with the change in control upon the closing of the General Partner Acquisition as specified in the Lehigh Gas Partners LP Executive Income
Continuity Plan, all unvested awards held by covered persons vested on October 1, 2014. As a result, 167,535 phantom units and 9,622 profits interests
granted to employees of DMI vested. Upon the vesting of the phantom units, 101,456 common units were issued, net of units withheld for income taxes.

In addition, 2,045 phantom units and 15,429 profits interests granted to members of the board of directors vested on October 1, 2014. Upon the vesting of the
phantom units, 2,045 common units were issued.

The incremental charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2014 associated with the accelerated vesting of all these grants was approximately $4.6 million.

Grant of Phantom Units

On October 1, 2014, we issued 97,043 phantom units to employees of DMI. These units vest in one-third increments annually starting March 15, 2015. In
addition, all unvested outstanding awards to certain employees of DMI were modified such that if within two years of a change in control, the employee is
terminated involuntarily or the employee terminates his or her service due to a material reduction in base salary or a requirement to relocate his or her primary
place of employment more than a specified distance from his or her current principal place of residence, then the awards will vest immediately and the
employee will be paid as specified in the awards.
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In addition, in October 2014, the board of directors approved that on November 10, 2014, phantom units, with a fair market value of $70,000 per director, will
be granted to the Partnerships three non-employee directors as a part of director compensation. Such grants will vest November 10, 2015.

Nice N Easy Acquisition

CST had previously entered into an agreement to purchase, effective November 1, 2014 (the “Closing Date™), the convenience store assets, franchisor rights,
and associated trademarks of Nice N Easy Grocery Shoppes, located in central New York with a concentration in the Syracuse, NY region. Effective on the
Closing Date, CST assigned the real property, including underground storage tanks and canopies, to LGWS and the related fuel distribution agreements to
LGW, for aggregate cash consideration of approximately $65 million (the “Purchase Price”). In addition, LGWS entered into a lease with a subsidiary of CST
for the acquired real estate and LGW entered into a wholesale fuel distribution agreement with a subsidiary of CST. CST operates the sites and purchased the
working capital of the acquired assets.

The conflicts committee of the board of directors approved the Purchase Price, subject to adjustments in the allocation of the purchase price between CST and
the Partnership, to be settled no later than December 31, 2014, and the terms of the associated lease and wholesale fuel supply agreements.

We funded the Purchase Price with borrowings under the credit facility.

Outlook

We expect total fuel volume to increase in 2014, driven by the Rogers, Rocky Top and Manchester acquisitions in the third and fourth quarters of 2013 and
the Atlas and PMI acquisitions in the second quarter of 2014, offset by a decrease in volume as a result of market conditions. Based on current market
conditions, we expect our motor fuel gross margin per gallon to be consistent with historical results. We expect rent income to increase in 2014 as a result of
the 2013 and 2014 acquisitions.

Earnings in future periods are subject to various risks and uncertainties. See “Forward-Looking Information” and Note 12 to the financial statements included
within this report and Item 1A. Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, for a discussion of the risks,
uncertainties and factors that may impact future results.

Results of Operations
Evaluating Our Results of Operations

The primary drivers of our operating results are the volume of motor fuels we distribute, the margin per gallon we are able to generate on the motor fuels we
distribute and the rent income we earn on the sites we own or sub-lease. For owned or sub-leased sites, we seek to maximize the overall profitability of our
operations, balancing the contributions to profitability of motor fuel distribution revenues and rent income. Our Omnibus Agreement, under which the
Company provides management, administrative and operating services for us, enables us to manage a significant component of our operating expenses. Our
management relies on financial and operational metrics designed to track the key elements that contribute to our operating performance. To evaluate our
operating performance, our management considers gross profit from fuel sales, motor fuel volumes, margin per gallon, rent income for sites we own or sub-
lease, EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow.

Gross Profit, Volume and Margin per Gallon - Gross profit from fuel sales represents the excess of revenues from fuel sales, including revenues from fuel
sales to affiliates, over cost of revenues from fuel sales, including cost of revenues from fuel sales to affiliates. Wholesale fuel prices are highly correlated to
the price of crude oil. The crude oil commodity markets are highly volatile, and the market prices of crude oil, and correspondingly the cost of the gasoline
and diesel fuel we purchase from suppliers, experience significant and rapid fluctuations. The prices we charge our customers for fuel and the gross margin
we receive on our fuel sales can increase or decrease significantly and rapidly over short periods of time. Generally, our gross margin increases when the price
of crude oil decreases and our gross margin decreases when the price of crude oil increases.

Volume of motor fuel represents the gallons of motor fuel we distribute to sites. Margin per gallon represents gross profit from fuel sales divided by total
gallons of motor fuels distributed. We use volumes of motor fuel we distribute to a site and margin per gallon to assess the effectiveness of our pricing
strategies, the performance of a site as compared to other sites we own or lease, and our margins as compared to the margins of sites we seek to acquire or
lease.

Rent Income - We evaluate our sites’ performance based, in part, on the rent income we earn from them. For sub-leased sites, we consider the rent income
after payment of our lease obligations for the site. We use this information in combination with the fuel-related metrics noted previously to assess the
effectiveness of pricing strategies for our leases, the performance of a site as compared to other sites we own or lease, and compare rent income of sites we
seek to acquire or lease.
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EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow - Our management uses EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow to analyze our
performance as more fully described in “Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”

Comparison of Results for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

The following table sets forth our statements of operations for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Three Months Three Months
Ended Ended
September 30, 2014 September 30, 2013
(unaudited) (unaudited) $ Variance % Variance
Revenues:
Revenues from fuel sales $ 602,553 $ 251,626 $350,927 139.5
Revenues from fuel sales to affiliates 190,461 228,347 (37,886) (16.6)
Revenues from food and merchandise sales 28,588 — 28,588 n/a
Rent income 5,797 4,167 1,630 39.1
Rent income from affiliates 5,032 5,938 (906) (15.3)
Other revenue 311 496 (185) (37.3)
Total revenues 832,742 490,574 342,168 69.7
Costs and Expenses:
Cost of revenues from fuel sales 588,674 246,281 342,393 139.0
Cost of revenues from fuel sales to affiliates 182,702 222,021 (39,319) (17.7)
Cost of revenues from food and merchandise sales 21,160 34 21,126 n/a
Rent expense 5,253 3,679 1,574 42.8
Operating expenses 11,151 1,286 9,865 n/a
Depreciation and amortization 8,335 5,212 3,123 59.9
Selling, general and administrative expenses 6,988 4,604 2,384 51.8
Loss on sales of assets, net 49 — 49 n/a
Total costs and operating expenses 824,312 483,117 341,195 70.6
Operating income 8,430 7,457 973 13.0
Interest expense (5,162) (3,349) (1,813) 54.1
Other income, net 92 93 (1) (1.1)
Income before income taxes 3,360 4,201 (841) (20.0)
Income tax benefit (803) (723) (80) 11.1
Net income 4,163 4,924 (761) (15.5)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 8 — 8 n/a
Net income attributable to partners $ 4,155 $ 4,924 $ (769) (15.6)
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As noted previously, we began operating in two reportable segments as of September 1, 2013. Unallocated costs consist primarily of interest expense
associated with the Credit Facility, selling, general and administrative expenses, income taxes and the elimination of the retail segment’s intersegment cost of
revenues from fuel sales against the wholesale segment’s intersegment revenues from fuel sales. The profit in ending inventory generated by the intersegment
fuel sale is also eliminated. The tables below presents our results for the three months ended September 30, 2014, by segment (in thousands).

Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

Wholesale Retail Unallocated Consolidated
Revenues from fuel sales to external customers $634,400 $158,614 $ — $ 793,014
Intersegment revenues from fuel sales 59,029 — (59,029) —
Revenues from food and merchandise sales — 28,588 — 28,588
Rent income 9,529 1,300 — 10,829
Other revenues (61) 372 — 311
Total revenues 702,897 188,874 (59,029) 832,742
Cost of revenues from fuel sales 674,249 156,144 (59,017) 771,376
Cost of revenues from food and merchandise sales — 21,160 — 21,160
Rent expense 4,677 576 — 5,253
Operating expenses 2,335 8,816 — 11,151
Depreciation and amortization 6,826 1,509 — 8,335
Selling, general and administrative expenses — — 6,988 6,988
Loss (gains) on sales of assets, net 50 Q) — 49
Total costs and expenses 688,137 188,204 (52,029) 824,312
Operating income (loss) 14,760 670 (7,000) 8,430
Interest expense (1,301) (126) (3,735) (5,162)
Other income, net 85 7 — 92
Income (loss) before income taxes 13,544 551 (10,735) 3,360
Income tax benefit — — (803) (803)
Net income (loss) $ 13,544 $ 551 $ (9,932) $ 4,163

Three Months Ended September 30, 2013

Wholesale Retail Unallocated Consolidated
Revenues from fuel sales to external customers $462,741 $ 17,232 $ — $ 479,973
Intersegment revenues from fuel sales 15,813 — (15,813) —
Revenues from food and merchandise sales — — — —
Rent income 9,773 332 — 10,105
Other revenues 462 34 — 496
Total revenues 488,789 17,598 (15,813) 490,574
Cost of revenues from fuel sales 467,113 16,977 (15,788) 468,302
Cost of revenues from food and merchandise sales — 34 — 34
Rent expense 3,639 40 — 3,679
Operating expenses 1,230 56 — 1,286
Depreciation and amortization 5,062 150 — 5,212
Selling, general and administrative expenses — — 4,604 4,604
Total costs and expenses 477,044 17,257 (11,184) 483,117
Operating income (loss) 11,745 341 (4,629) 7,457
Interest expense (952) 42) (2,355) (3,349)
Other income, net 91 2 — 93
Income (loss) before income taxes 10,884 301 (6,984) 4,201
Income tax benefit — — (723) (723)
Net income (loss) $ 10,884 $ 301 $ (6,261) $ 4924
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Revenues and Costs from Fuel Sales

Our aggregate revenues from fuel sales, which include revenues from fuel sales to affiliates, and aggregate cost of revenues from fuel sales, which include the
cost of revenues from fuel sales to affiliates, are principally derived from the purchase and sale of gasoline and diesel fuel with the resulting changes in
aggregate revenues from fuel sales, and aggregate cost of revenues from fuel sales, being attributable to the combination of volume of gallons of fuel
distributed and/or fluctuations in market prices for crude oil and petroleum products, which are generally passed onto our customers (in thousands, except per
gallon data).

Three Months Three Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30, $ %
2014 2013 Variance Variance

Revenues from fuel sales $ 793,014 $ 479,973 $313,041 65.2
Cost of revenues from fuel sales 771,376 468,302 303,074 64.7
Gross margin from fuel sales 21,638 11,671 9,967 85.4
Volume (in thousands of gallons) 269,416 160,472 108,944 67.9
Sales price per gallon 2.943 2.991 (0.048) (1.6)
Gross margin per gallon (a) 0.080 0.073 0.007 10.4

(@) The wholesale segment gross margin was $0.078 and the retail segment gross margin was $0.053 for the three months ended September 30, 2014. As
noted previously, we began operating in two reportable segments as of September 1, 2013.

The increase in aggregate revenues from fuel sales resulted from an increase of $325.9 million related to an increase in volume of gallons distributed and a
decrease of $12.8 million related to lower selling prices per gallon. The increase in volume of gallons distributed was principally related to our acquisitions,
with 73.4 million gallons related to the PMI acquisition, 9.6 million gallons related to the Manchester acquisition, 21.1 million gallons related to the Atlas
acquisition, 7.3 million gallons related to the Rocky Top acquisition, 3.8 million gallons related to the Rogers acquisition and 0.3 million gallons related to
new Getty sites. These increases were partially offset by decreases of 4.3 million gallons related to marketplace competition, 0.4 million gallons related to the
closure of sites and 0.2 million gallons related to terminated dealer supply contracts.

Revenues and Costs from Food and Merchandise Sales

Revenues and costs from food and merchandise sales were generated by PMI. Margins of 26% were generated for the three months ended September 30,
2014.

Rent Income

Rent income, including rent income from affiliates, increased $0.7 million to $10.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, from

$10.1 million for the same period in 2013. This increase was driven by $1.1 million of incremental rent income from the 2013 and 2014 acquisitions partially
offset by the $0.2 million impact of leases with LGO that were terminated in the third quarter of 2013 associated with commission class of trade and closed
sites and the $0.1 million impact of sites that have been sold.

Rent Expense

Rent expense increased $1.6 million to $5.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, compared with $3.7 million for the same period in 2013.
The PMI operations drove $1.3 million of the increase. The remaining increase was primarily due to the 2013 and 2014 acquisitions, which resulted in an
increase of $0.4 million, partially offset by a $0.1 million decrease associated with terminated leases. The settlement of capital lease obligations at severed
Getty sites resulted in a gain of $0.2 million and $0.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $9.9 million to $11.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, compared with $1.3 million for the same period
in 2013. PMI drove $8.6 million of the increase, which was comprised primarily of management fees incurred with an affiliate, repairs and maintenance, real
estate taxes, utilities and supplies. Excluding the results of PMI, the remaining increase was primarily due to an increase in repairs and maintenance of $0.6
million due to an increase in the number of owned and leased sites as a result of the 2013 and 2014 acquisitions. We also incurred $0.5 million more in real
estate taxes associated with certain commission sites for which the leases with the commission agents are not triple net leases.
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Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased $3.1 million to $8.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, from $5.2 million for the same period in
2013. This increase was driven by $2.8 million of incremental depreciation and amortization resulting from the 2013 and 2014 acquisitions and $0.5 million
of impairment charges related to two sites.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $2.4 million to $7.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, compared with $4.6
million for the same period in 2013. The PMI operations drove $1.1 million of the increase, which was comprised primarily of management fees incurred
with an affiliate as well as professional fees, non-income taxes and $0.1 million of acquisition costs. Excluding the results of PMI, the remaining increase was
primarily due to the change in the management fee structure under the Omnibus Agreement and the increase in fuel volume, which resulted in an increase of
$1.0 million, and an increase in equity-based compensation expense of $0.5 million.

Acquisition costs incurred during the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were $0.1 million and $0.4 million, respectively.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $1.9 million to $5.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, compared with $3.3 million for the same period in
2013. The increase was primarily driven by an increase in average outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility, which resulted in an increase of $0.6
million, and the seller financing issued in connection with the Rocky Top acquisition, which resulted in an increase of $0.5 million. In addition, we incurred
$0.3 million of costs to amend our Credit Facility in July 2014 and deferred financing costs of $0.3 million were written off in 2014 as a result of changes in
lenders in the amended credit facility.

Income Tax Expense

The tax benefit recorded in 2014 was primarily related to updates in rates stemming from the Atlas and PMI acquisitions.

The tax benefit recorded in 2013 was primarily related to a partial valuation allowance release in connection with the Express Lane acquisition and
subsequent assignment of property and equipment by the Partnership to LGWS.
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Comparison of Results for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

The following table sets forth our statements of operations for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Revenues:
Revenues from fuel sales
Revenues from fuel sales to affiliates
Revenues from food and merchandise sales
Rent income
Rent income from affiliates
Other revenues
Total revenues
Costs and Expenses:
Cost of revenues from fuel sales
Cost of revenues from fuel sales to affiliates

Cost of revenues from food and merchandise sales

Rent expense
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Gains on sales of assets, net
Total costs and operating expenses
Operating income
Interest expense
Other income, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax benefit
Net income
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income attributable to partners

Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2014 2013
(unaudited) (unaudited) $ Variance % Variance
$ 1,427,701 $ 698,649 $ 729,052 104.4
575,358 719,916 (144,558) (20.1)
45,837 — 45,837 n/a
16,743 11,352 5,391 47.5
15,544 19,287 (3,743) (19.4)
771 1,427 (656) (46.0)
2,081,954 1,450,631 631,323 43.5
1,398,894 684,224 714,670 104.4
556,213 700,756 (144,543) (20.6)
35,235 34 35,201 n/a
14,001 11,463 2,538 22.1
19,890 3,219 16,671 n/a
21,518 14,915 6,603 44.3
22,197 12,003 10,194 84.9
(1,484) (47) (1,437) n/a
2,066,464 1,426,567 639,897 44.9
15,490 24,064 (8,574) (35.6)
(12,901) (10,233) (2,668) 26.1
315 259 56 21.6
2,904 14,090 (11,186) (79.4)
(4,579) (60) (4,519) n/a
7,483 14,150 (6,667) (47.1)
8 — 8 n/a
$ 7475 $ 14150 $ (6,675) (47.2)
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As noted previously, the Partnership began operating in two reportable segments commencing September 1, 2013. Unallocated costs consist primarily of
interest expense associated with the Credit Facility, selling, general and administrative expenses, income taxes and the elimination of the retail segment’s
intersegment cost of revenues from fuel sales against the wholesale segment’s intersegment revenues from fuel sales. The profit in ending inventory generated
by the intersegment fuel sale is also eliminated. The table below presents our results for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, by segment (in
thousands).

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

Wholesale Retail Unallocated Consolidated
Revenues from fuel sales to external customers $1,673,914 $329,145 $ — $2,003,059
Intersegment revenues from fuel sales 159,077 — (159,077) —
Revenues from food and merchandise sales — 45,837 — 45,837
Rent income 28,856 3,431 — 32,287
Other revenues 380 391 — 771
Total revenues 1,862,227 378,804 (159,077) 2,081,954
Cost of revenues from fuel sales 1,789,451 324,684 (159,028) 1,955,107
Cost of revenues from food and merchandise sales — 35,235 — 35,235
Rent expense 13,016 985 — 14,001
Operating expenses 6,667 13,223 — 19,890
Depreciation and amortization 18,542 2,976 — 21,518
Selling, general and administrative expenses — — 22,197 22,197
Gains on sales of assets, net (1,483) Q) — (1,484)
Total costs and expenses 1,826,193 377,102 (136,831) 2,066,464
Operating income (loss) 36,034 1,702 (22,246) 15,490
Interest expense (3,907) (378) (8,616) (12,901)
Other income, net 281 34 — 315
Income (loss) before income taxes 32,408 1,358 (30,862) 2,904
Income tax benefit — — (4,579) (4,579)
Net income (loss) $ 32,408 $ 1,358 $ (26,283) $ 7,483

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013

Wholesale Retail Unallocated Consolidated
Revenues from fuel sales to external customers $1,401,333 $ 17,232 $ — $1,418,565
Intersegment revenues from fuel sales 15,813 — (15,813) —
Revenues from food and merchandise sales — — — —
Rent income 30,307 332 — 30,639
Other revenues 1,393 34 — 1,427
Total revenues 1,448,846 17,598 (15,813) 1,450,631
Cost of revenues from fuel sales 1,383,791 16,977 (15,788) 1,384,980
Cost of revenues from food and merchandise sales — 34 — 34
Rent expense 11,423 40 — 11,463
Operating expenses 3,163 56 — 3,219
Depreciation and amortization 14,765 150 — 14,915
Selling, general and administrative expenses — — 12,003 12,003
Gains on sales of assets, net 47) — — (47)
Total costs and expenses 1,413,095 17,257 (3,785) 1,426,567
Operating income (loss) 35,751 341 (12,028) 24,064
Interest expense (3,197) (42) (6,994) (10,233)
Other income, net 257 2 — 259
Income (loss) before income taxes 32,811 301 (19,022) 14,090
Income tax benefit — — (60) (60)
Net income (loss) $ 32,811 $ 301 $ (18,962) $ 14,150
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Revenues and Costs from Fuel Sales

Our aggregate revenues from fuel sales, which include revenues from fuel sales to affiliates, and aggregate cost of revenues from fuel sales, which include the
cost of revenues from fuel sales to affiliates, are principally derived from the purchase and sale of gasoline and diesel fuel with the resulting changes in
aggregate revenues from fuel sales, and aggregate cost of revenues from fuel sales, being attributable to the combination of volume of gallons of fuel
distributed and/or fluctuations in market prices for crude oil and petroleum products, which are generally passed onto our customers (in thousands, except per
gallon data).

Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30, $ %
2014 2013 Variance Variance
Revenues from fuel sales $ 2,003,059 $ 1,418,565 $584,494 41.2
Cost of revenues from fuel sales 1,955,107 1,384,980 570,127 41.2
Gross margin from fuel sales 47,952 33,585 14,367 42.8
Volume (in thousands of gallons) 664,509 470,869 193,640 41.1
Sales price per gallon 3.014 3.013 0.001 0.1
Gross margin per gallon (a) 0.072 0.071 0.001 1.2

(@) The wholesale segment gross margin was $0.070 and the retail segment gross margin was $0.047 for the nine months ended September 30, 2014. As
noted previously, we began operating in two reportable segments as of September 1, 2013.

The increase in aggregate revenues from fuel sales was $583.4 million related to an increase in volume of gallons distributed. The increase in volume of
gallons distributed was primarily related to our acquisitions, with 122.8 million gallons related to the PMI acquisition, 29.1 million gallons related to the
Manchester acquisition, 29.9 million gallons related to the Atlas acquisition, 22.6 million gallons related to the Rocky Top acquisition, 12.7 million gallons
related to the Rogers acquisition and 0.8 million gallons related to new Getty sites. These increases were partially offset by decreases of 14.1 million gallons
related to marketplace competition, 7.3 million gallons related to the closure of sites, and 2.6 million gallons related to terminated dealer supply contracts.

Revenues and Costs from Food and Merchandise Sales

Revenues and costs from food and merchandise sales were generated by PMI. Margins of 23% were negatively impacted by the $1.6 million fair value
adjustment to merchandise inventory recorded in purchase accounting that was expensed as a one-time charge in the post-acquisition period.

Rent Income

Rent income, including rent income from affiliates, increased $1.7 million to $32.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, from

$30.6 million for the same period in 2013. This increase was driven by $3.6 million of incremental rent income from the 2013 and 2014 acquisitions partially
offset by the $1.5 million impact of leases with LGO that were terminated in the third quarter of 2013 associated with commission class of trade and closed
sites and the $0.3 million impact of sites that have been sold.

Rent Expense

Rent expense increased $2.5 million to $14.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, compared with $11.5 million for the same period in
2013. PMI drove $2.3 million of the increase. The remaining increase was primarily due to the 2013 and 2014 acquisitions, which resulted in an increase of
$0.6 million, partially offset by a $0.2 million decrease associated with terminated leases. The settlement of capital lease obligations at severed Getty sites
resulted in gains of $0.3 million for both the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $16.7 million to $19.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, compared with $3.2 million for the same period
in 2013. The PMI operations drove $13.3 million of the increase, which is comprised primarily of management fees incurred with an affiliate, repairs and
maintenance, real estate taxes, utilities and supplies. Excluding the results of PMI, the remaining increase was primarily due to an increase in repairs and
maintenance of $2.0 million due to an increase in owned and leased sites as a result of the 2013 and 2014 acquisitions. We also incurred $0.8 million more in
real estate taxes associated with certain commission sites for which the leases with the commission agents are not triple net leases. In addition, we incurred
$0.2 million more in rebranding costs, primarily driven by the termination of the Chevron fuel purchase contract in order to rebrand certain sites in Florida
from Chevron to ExxonMobil.
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Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased $6.6 million to $21.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, from $14.9 million for the same period
in 2013. This increase was driven by $5.8 million of incremental depreciation and amortization resulting from the 2013 and 2014 acquisitions, a $0.2 million
write-off of the trademark associated with the Rogers acquisition as a result of rebranding those sites and $0.5 million of impairment charges related to two
sites.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $10.2 million to $22.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, compared with $12.0
million for the same period in 2013. PMI drove $7.3 million of the increase, which was comprised primarily of management fees incurred with an affiliate,
$5.6 million of acquisition costs as well as professional fees and non-income taxes. Excluding the results of PMI, the remaining increase was primarily due to
the change in the management fee structure under the omnibus agreement and the increase in fuel volume, which resulted in an increase of $1.1 million and
an increase in equity-based compensation expense of $1.4 million.

Acquisition costs incurred during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, were $6.1 million and $1.0 million, respectively.

Gains on Sales of Assets, net

The gain recorded for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, related primarily to two site divestitures.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $2.7 million to $12.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, compared with $10.2 million for the same period in
2013. The seller financing issued in connection with the Rocky Top acquisition resulted in an increase of $1.5 million. Also, interest expense increased $0.7
million as a result of higher average borrowings on the credit facility. In addition, deferred financing costs of $0.7 million were written off in 2014 as a result
of changes in lenders in the amended credit facility. Further, an additional $0.3 million of financing costs were expensed in 2014 related to the July 2014
amendment of the credit facility. Partially offsetting these increases was a $0.5 million decrease in amortization of deferred financing costs as a result of
extending the term of the credit facility in March 2014 and a $0.5 million decrease in interest associated with sale-leaseback transactions as a result of a
decrease in the outstanding balance.

Income Tax Expense

We recorded a $4.6 million benefit for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to a benefit of $0.1 million for the same period in 2013. The
benefit recorded in 2014 was driven by a partial release of the valuation allowance against deferred tax assets of $5.2 million. The release was driven by the
recognition of net deferred tax liabilities associated with the preliminary purchase price allocation related to the acquisition of PMI. Since the purchase price
allocation is preliminary, such release is subject to change and such change could be material. Further, in conjunction with our ongoing review of actual
results and anticipated future earnings, we continuously reassess the possibility of releasing the remaining $1.9 million valuation allowance on deferred tax
assets. It is reasonably possible that a significant portion of the valuation allowance will be released within the next twelve months.

The valuation allowance release was partially offset by the impact of certain nondeductible acquisition costs and the taxable gain on the sale of the Lubricants
Business for which a portion related to nondeductible goodwill. Deferred tax expense of $1.2 million related primarily to the settlement of certain
supplemental executive retirement plan liabilities of PMI. The current income tax benefit resulting from this settlement was offset by current income tax
expense on the taxable gain on the sale of the Lubricants Business.

The deferred tax benefit recorded in 2013 was primarily related to a partial valuation allowance release in connection with the Express Lane acquisition and
subsequent assignment of property and equipment by the Partnership to LGWS.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

Our principal liquidity requirements are to finance current operations, fund acquisitions from time-to-time, and to service our debt. We expect our ongoing
sources of liquidity to include cash generated by our operations and borrowings under the Credit Facility and, if available to us on acceptable terms, issuances
of equity and debt securities. We expect that these sources of funds will be adequate to provide for our short-term and long-term liquidity needs. Our ability to
meet our debt service obligations and other capital requirements, including capital expenditures, as well as make acquisitions, will depend on our future
operating performance which, in turn, will be subject to general economic, financial, business, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other conditions, many
of which are beyond our control. A material decrease in our cash flow from operating activities would also likely produce an adverse effect on our borrowing
capacity as well as our ability to issue additional common units and/or debt securities. As a normal part of our business, depending on market conditions, we
will, from time-to-time, consider opportunities to repay, redeem, repurchase or refinance our indebtedness. Changes in our operating plans, lower than
anticipated sales, increased expenses, acquisitions or other events may cause us to seek additional debt or equity financing in future periods.

We intend to pay at least a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.4375 per unit per quarter, which equates to approximately $10.0 million per quarter, or
$40.2 million per year, based on the current number of common and subordinated units outstanding. We do not have a legal obligation to pay this distribution
and our Credit Facility includes certain restrictions on our ability to make distributions. We have increased our distribution since our initial public offering as
summarized in “Overview.”

Comparison of Cash Flows for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

The following table summarizes cash flow activity (in thousands):

Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, 2014 September 30, 2013 Variance
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 8,431 $ 27,257 $(18,826)
Net cash used in investing activities (106,396) (33,415) (72,981)
Net cash provided by financing activities 97,119 1,572 95,547

Net cash provided by operating activities includes balance sheet changes arising from wholesale motor fuel purchasing patterns, the timing of collections on
our accounts receivable, the seasonality of our business, fluctuations in wholesale motor fuel prices, our working capital requirements and general market
conditions.

The decrease in net cash provided by operating activities resulted from a decrease in net income of $6.7 million and a decrease in the change in working
capital and other assets and liabilities of $15.7 million, partially offset by an increase in net non-cash charges of $3.5 million.

The decrease in the change in working capital and other assets and liabilities was primarily driven by differences in timing of collection of credit card
payments.

Net non-cash charges were higher in 2014 as a result of higher depreciation and amortization and equity-based compensation expense, partially offset by
increases in the deferred tax benefit and gains on sales of assets.

The increase in net cash used in investing activities was driven by the cash paid for the Atlas and PMI acquisitions in 2014, partially offset by the proceeds on
the divestiture of the lubricants business. In addition, lower proceeds from sales of property and equipment and higher capital expenditures were partially
offset by higher principal payments on notes receivable.

The increase in net cash provided by financing activities resulted from the equity offering in September 2014 that resulted in net proceeds of $135.0 million, a
$4.7 million decrease in payments on lease financing obligations and the $3.5 million payment to LGO in 2013 for the commission sites, partially offset by a
$33.1 million decrease in net repayments on the Credit Facility, a $10.5 million increase in distributions paid and a $4.2 million increase in financing costs
paid.
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Capital Expenditures

We make investments to expand, upgrade and enhance existing assets. We categorize our capital requirements as either maintenance capital expenditures or
expansion capital expenditures. Maintenance capital expenditures are those capital expenditures required to maintain our long-term operating income or
operating capacity. We anticipate maintenance capital expenditures will be funded primarily with cash generated by operations. We had approximately $2.0
million and $1.9 million in maintenance capital expenditures for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which are included in
purchases of property and equipment in our statements of cash flows.

Expansion capital expenditures are those capital expenditures that we expect will increase our operating income or operating capacity over the long term. We
have the ability to fund our expansion capital expenditures by additional borrowings under the Credit Facility or, if available to us on acceptable terms,
issuing additional equity, debt securities or other options, such as the sale of assets. We cannot assure you that we can complete any offering of securities or
other options on terms acceptable to us, if at all. We had approximately $116.2 million and $30.6 million in expansion capital expenditures for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use the non-GAAP financial measures EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow in this report. EBITDA represents net income before
deducting interest expense, income taxes and depreciation and amortization. Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDA as further adjusted to exclude gains or
losses on sales of assets, gains or losses on the extinguishment of debt, equity-based incentive compensation, equity-based director compensation and certain
other non-cash items as deemed appropriate by management. Distributable Cash Flow represents Adjusted EBITDA less cash interest expense, maintenance
capital expenditures net of any reimbursements and current income tax expense.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow are used as supplemental financial measures by management and by external users of our financial
statements, such as investors and lenders. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are used to assess our financial performance without regard to financing methods,
capital structure or income taxes and our ability to incur and service debt and to fund capital expenditures. In addition, Adjusted EBITDA is used to assess the
operating performance of our business on a consistent basis by excluding the impact of sales of our assets which do not result directly from our wholesale
distribution of motor fuel and our leasing of real property. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow are also used to assess our ability to
generate cash sufficient to make distributions to our unit-holders.

We believe the presentation of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow provides useful information to investors in assessing our financial
condition and results of operations. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow should not be considered alternatives to net income, net cash
provided by operating activities or any other measure of financial performance or liquidity presented in accordance with GAAP. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA
and Distributable Cash Flow have important limitations as analytical tools because they exclude some but not all items that affect net income and net cash
provided by operating activities. Additionally, because EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow may be defined differently by other
companies in our industry, our definitions may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies, thereby diminishing their utility.
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The following tables present reconciliations of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to net income and EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to net cash provided by
operating activities, the most directly comparable GAAP financial measures, on a historical basis, for each of the periods indicated (in thousands).

Reconciliation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to net income:
Net income
Plus:

Depreciation and amortization

Income tax benefit

Interest expense
EBITDA
Equity-based incentive compensation expense
Equity-based director compensation expense
Losses (gains) on sales of assets, net
Adjusted EBITDA

Reconciliation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Net cash provided by operating activities
Changes in certain operating assets and liabilities
Interest expense
Others items, net
EBITDA
Equity-based incentive compensation expense
Equity-based director compensation expense
Losses (gains) on sales of assets, net
Adjusted EBITDA

Reconciliation of Distributable Cash Flow
Adjusted EBITDA
Less:
Cash interest expense
Maintenance capital expenditures (a)
Current income tax expense

Distributable Cash Flow

Three Months

Ended

September 30,

$

2014

4,163

8,335

(803)

5,162

16,857

1,629
196
49

18,731

5,954
8,791
5,162

(3,050)

$

16,857
1,629
196

49

18,731

18,731

(4,150)
(1,002)
249

13,555

Three Months

Ended

September 30,

$

2013

4,924

5,212
(723)
3,352

12,765

1,245
140

14,150

13,132
(2,117)
3,352

(1,602)

$

12,765
1,245
140

14,150

14,150

(2,698)
(1,120)
(364)

9,968

Nine Months

Ended

September 30,

$

2014
7,483

21,518
(4,579)

12,901

37,323
3,572
303

(1,484)

39,714

8,431
20,401
12,901

(4,410)

$

37,323

3,572

303
(1,484)

39,714

39,714

(10,515)
(1,986)
(89

27,124

Nine Months

Ended

September 30,

$

2013
14,150

14,915
(60)

10,241

39,246
2,223
231

(47)

41,653

27,257
5,258
10,241

(3,510)

$

39,246
2,223
231

(47)

41,653

41,653

(8,228)
(1,865)
(1,036)

30,524

(@) Under our partnership agreement, maintenance capital expenditures are capital expenditures made to maintain our long-term operating income or
operating capacity. Examples of maintenance capital expenditures are those made to maintain existing contract volumes, including payments to renew
existing distribution contracts, or to maintain our sites in leasable condition, such as parking lot or roof replacement/renovation, or to replace equipment

required to operate our existing business.



Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual obligations that are required to be settled in cash as of September 30, 2014 (in thousands):

@

(b)

©
(d

(®

Payments due by period

More Than
Total Remaining in 2014 1 - 3 Years 4 -5 Years 5 Years
(in thousands)
Long-term debt (a) $197,064 $ 1,802 $ 37,798 $ 11,060 $146,404
Financing obligations (b) 96,646 1,518 12,239 12,195 70,694
Operating lease obligations (c) 135,434 5,879 33,391 26,225 69,939
Management fees (d) 16,750 2,010 14,740 — —
Other long-term liabilities (e) — — — — —
Total $445,894 $ 11,209 $ 98,168 $ 49,480 $287,037

The Partnership’s credit facility expires March 4, 2019 and thus the principal balance outstanding at September 30, 2014 is included in the 4-5 year
period. Interest, which is based on variable rates, was assumed to remain constant at a weighted-average rate of 3.5%. The amounts above include $26.2
million of financing incurred in connection with the Rocky Top acquisition, which is payable in August 2015 at the earliest. Amounts also include
estimated interest expense.

The lease financing obligations consist of principal and interest payments due on sale-leaseback transactions for which the sale was not recognized
because we retained continuing involvement in the underlying sites. Also included are principal and interest payments due on capital lease obligations,
including the portions of the Getty lease agreements being accounted for as capital lease obligations.

These operating leases expire through December 2028.

As noted previously, effective July 1, 2014, the Partnership pays DMI a management fee of $670,000 per month plus a variable fee of between zero and
$0.003 per gallon for wholesale fuel distribution and $0.015 per gallon for retail fuel distribution at sites we operate.

Under the terms of various supply agreements, the Partnership is obligated to minimum volume purchases measured in gallons of motor fuel. Future
minimum volume purchase requirements are 103 million gallons for the remainder of 2014 and 377 million gallons for 2015, reducing to 242 million
gallons in 2018. Future minimum volume purchase requirements from 2019 through 2030 total 2.5 billion gallons. The aggregate dollar amount of the
future minimum volume purchase requirements is dependent on the future weighted average wholesale cost per gallon charged under the applicable
supply agreements. The amounts and timing of the related payment obligation cannot be reasonably estimated. As a result, payment of these amounts
has been excluded from the table above.

Long-term Debt

Debt outstanding at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was as follows (in thousands):

September 30, December 31,
2014 2013

Revolving credit facility $ 145,555 $ 146,330
Financing associated with Rocky Top acquisition 26,250 26,250
Note payable 942 980
Total 172,747 173,560
Current portion 26,302 51
Long-term debt $ 146,445 $ 173,509

Credit Facility

In March 2014, we entered into the Credit Facility which was amended in September 2014. The Credit Facility is a senior secured revolving credit facility
maturing March 4, 2019 with a total borrowing capacity of $550.0 million, under which swing-line loans may be drawn up to $10.0 million and standby
letters of credit may be issued up to an aggregate of $45.0 million. The Credit Facility may be increased, from time to time, upon our written request, subject
to certain conditions, up to an additional $100.0 million. All obligations under the Credit Facility are secured by substantially all of our assets. The notional
amount of availability at September 30, 2014, was $388.1 million.
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Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest, at our option, at (1) a rate equal to the London Interbank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”), for interest periods of
one week or one, two, three or six months, plus a margin of 2.00% to 3.25% per annum, depending on our total leverage ratio (as defined) or (2) (a) a base
rate equal to the greatest of: (i) the federal funds rate, plus 0.5%, (ii) LIBOR for one month interest periods, plus 1.00% per annum or (iii) the rate of interest
established by the agent, from time to time, as its prime rate, plus (b) a margin of 1.00% to 2.25% per annum depending on our total leverage ratio. In
addition, we incur a commitment fee based on the unused portion of the revolving credit facility at a rate of 0.35% to 0.50% per annum depending on our total
leverage ratio. The weighted-average interest rate on outstanding borrowings at September 30, 2014 was 3.5%. Letters of credit outstanding at September 30,
2014 and December 31, 2013 totaled $16.4 million and $12.3 million, respectively.

We are required to comply with certain financial covenants under the Credit Facility. Effective July 2, 2014, we are required to maintain a total leverage ratio
(as defined) for the most recently completed four fiscal quarters of less than or equal to 5.50:1.00 for the period of April 1, 2014, through September 30,
2014; and 5.00:1.00 for the period of October 1, 2014, through December 31, 2014, and 4.50:1.00 for periods thereafter, except for periods following a
material acquisition. However, if an offering of Equity Interests (as defined) in the Partnership occurs after July 2, 2014, but prior to December 31, 2014, the
total leverage ratio shall not exceed 4.50:1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2014; and the total leverage ratio shall not exceed 5.00:1.00 for the
two full fiscal quarters following the closing of a material acquisition or 5.50:1.00 upon the issuance of Qualified Senior Notes (as defined) in the aggregate
principal amount of $175.0 million or greater. We are also required to maintain a senior leverage ratio (as defined) after the issuance of Qualified Senior
Notes of $175.0 million or greater of less than or equal to 3.00:1.00 and a consolidated interest coverage ratio (as defined) of at least 2.75 to 1.00.

The Credit Facility prohibits us from making distributions to unitholders if any potential default or event of default occurs or would result from the
distribution, or we are not in compliance with financial covenants.

In addition, the Credit Facility contains various covenants that may limit, among other things, our ability to:
+ grant liens;
»  create, incur, assume or suffer to exist other indebtedness;
* make any material change to the nature of our business, including mergers, liquidations and dissolutions; and,

+ make certain investments, acquisitions or dispositions.

If an event of default exists under the Credit Facility, the lenders will be able to accelerate the maturity of the Credit Facility and exercise other rights and
remedies. Events of default include, among others, the following:

» failure to pay any principal when due or any interest, fees or other amounts when due;
» failure of any representation or warranty to be true and correct in any material respect;
+ failure to perform or otherwise comply with the covenants in the Credit Facility or in other loan documents without a waiver or amendment;

* any default in the performance of any obligation or condition beyond the applicable grace period relating to any other indebtedness of more than
$7.5 million;

* ajudgment default for monetary judgments not covered by insurance exceeding $20.0 million;
*  bankruptcy or insolvency event involving us;

+ an Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) violation;

» achange of control without a waiver or amendment; and

+ failure of the lenders for any reason to have a perfected first priority security interest in the security pledged by us or any of our subsidiaries or
any of the security becomes unenforceable or invalid.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Omnibus agreement contingently requires us to perform environmental remediation work as further discussed in Note 11 to the financial statements. We
also have operating leases and fuel purchase commitments as discussed in “Contractual Obligations” within our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2013.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk
Market Risk

We purchase gasoline and diesel fuel from several suppliers at costs that are subject to market volatility. These purchases are generally purchased pursuant to
contracts or at market prices established with the supplier. In general, we do not engage in hedging activities for these purchases due to our pricing structure
which allows us to generally pass on price changes to our customers and affiliates.

Commodity Price Risk

Effective September 1, 2013, we assumed the lessor position for commission sites previously operated by LGO. Since then, we record retail sales of motor
fuels to the end customer. Further, with the PMI acquisition, we have significantly more retail sales of motor fuels. We carry inventory on our balance sheet
for the period from the purchase of the motor fuels from the third party suppliers to the retail sale to the end customer. During this period we are exposed to
commodity price risk as it relates to motor fuel price fluctuations. During periods of market volatility the retail segment margins could be significantly
impacted. We currently do not hedge against this commodity price risk but may in the future. As of September 30, 2014, we had $7.7 million of motor fuel
inventory. A $0.01 change in motor fuel pricing would not have been significant.

Interest Rate Risk

Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in the financial markets, including interest rates. Our exposure to interest rate risk relates
primarily to our existing revolving credit facility.

To manage interest rate risk and limit overall interest cost we may, from time-to-time, employ interest rate swaps to convert a portion of the floating-rate debt
under our existing credit facility asset to a fixed-rate liability. Counterparties to these contracts are major financial institutions. These instruments are not used
for trading or speculative purposes. The extent to which we use such instruments is dependent upon our access to them in the financial markets. Our objective
in managing our exposure to market risk is to limit the impact on earnings and cash flow.

Interest rate differentials that arise under swap contracts are recognized in interest expense over the life of the contracts. If interest rates rise, the resulting cost
of funds is expected to be lower than that which would have been available if debt with matching characteristics was issued directly. Conversely, if interest
rates fall, the resulting costs would be expected to be higher. Gains and losses are recognized in net income.

As of September 30, 2014, we had $145.6 million outstanding on our revolving credit facility at an average interest rate of 3.5%. A one percentage point
change in our average rate would impact annual interest expense by an aggregate of approximately $1.5 million.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of September 30, 2014, management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, performed an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act. Our
disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosures. Any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving the desired control objective. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of September 30,
2014, the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that
occurred during the quarter ended September 30, 2014, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting, except as noted below.
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The Partnership acquired PMI on April 30, 2014. The internal controls over financial reporting of PMI are anticipated to be excluded from a formal
evaluation of effectiveness of the Partnership’s disclosure controls and procedures. This decision was based upon the significance of PMI to the Partnership
and the timing of integration efforts underway to transition PMI’s processes, information technology systems and other components of internal control over
financial reporting to the internal control structure of the Partnership. The Partnership has expanded its consolidation and disclosure controls and procedures
to include PMI, and the Partnership continues to assess the current internal control over financial reporting at PMI. Risks related to the increased account
balances are partially mitigated by the Partnership’s expanded controls over PMI’s results and the incorporation of PMI’s balances into the Partnership’s
consolidated financial statements.

PART II — OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in litigation incidental to the conduct of our business. We do not expect that any of this litigation, individually or in the
aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flow. We do not believe any legal proceeding involving
our Predecessor will have a material adverse impact on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Additional information regarding legal proceedings is included in Note 12 of the notes to the financial statements.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, which could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results. As a result of
the acquisition of our general partner, the following risk factors are supplemental to those discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

CST controls us and may have conflicts of interest with us in the future.

Through its acquisition of the Partnership’s general partner, effective October 1, 2014, CST now controls the Partnership, including the election of directors;
decisions regarding mergers, consolidations or acquisitions, the sale of all or substantially all of our assets and other matters affecting our capital structure;
and other significant decisions that could impact the financial results of the Partnership and the amount of cash available for distributions to unitholders. In
addition, CST may compete directly with us for future acquisitions, which may conflict with our core strategy to grow our business and increase distributions
to unitholders. As long as CST continues to own the General Partner, it will continue to be able to effectively control our decisions.

If we are unable to make acquisitions on economically acceptable terms from CST or third parties, our future growth and ability to increase distributions
to unitholders will be limited.

Our strategy to grow our business and increase distributions to unitholders is dependent on our ability to make acquisitions that result in an increase in cash
flow. Our growth strategy is based, in large part, on our expectation of ongoing divestitures of retail and wholesale fuel distribution assets by industry
participants, inclusive of CST. CST has no contractual obligations to contribute any assets to us or accept any offer for its assets that we may choose to make.
If we are unable to make acquisitions from CST or third parties for any reason, including if we are unable to identify attractive acquisition candidates or
negotiate acceptable purchase contracts, we are unable to obtain financing for these acquisitions on economically acceptable terms, we are outbid by
competitors or we or the seller are unable to obtain any necessary consents, our future growth and ability to increase distributions to unitholders will be
limited. In addition, if we consummate any future acquisitions, our capitalization and results of operations may change significantly, and unitholders will not
have the opportunity to evaluate the economic, financial and other relevant information that we will consider in determining the application of these funds and
other resources.

Any acquisitions, including future contributions to us of assets by CST, are subject to substantial risks that could adversely affect our financial condition
and results of operations and reduce our ability to make distributions to unitholders.

Any acquisitions, and any future contributions of assets to us by CST, involve potential risks, including, among other things:
+ the validity of our assumptions about revenues, capital expenditures and operating costs of the acquired business or assets, as well as assumptions

about achieving synergies with our existing business;
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» the validity of our assessment of environmental and other liabilities, including legacy liabilities;

» the costs associated with additional debt or equity capital, which may result in a significant increase in our interest expense and financial leverage
resulting from any additional debt incurred to finance the acquisition, or the issuance of additional common units on which we will make
distributions, either of which could offset the expected accretion to our unitholders from any such acquisition and could be exacerbated by
volatility in the equity or debt capital markets;

+ afailure to realize anticipated benefits, such as increased available cash per unit, enhanced competitive position or new customer relationships;
* adecrease in our liquidity by using a significant portion of our available cash or borrowing capacity to finance the acquisition; and

» the incurrence of other significant charges, such as impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets, asset devaluation or restructuring charges.
Also, our reviews of businesses or assets proposed to be acquired are inherently imperfect because it generally is not feasible to perform an in-depth review of
businesses and assets involved in each acquisition. Even a detailed review of assets and businesses may not necessarily reveal existing or potential problems,
nor will it permit a buyer to become sufficiently familiar with the assets or businesses to fully assess their deficiencies and potential. For example, inspections

may not always be performed on every asset, and environmental problems, such as groundwater contamination, are not necessarily observable even when an
inspection is undertaken.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

None.

Item 6. Exhibits

The exhibit index attached hereto is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
By: CROSSAMERICA GP LLC, its General Partner

Date: November 7, 2014 By: /s/ Mark L. Miller

Name: Mark L. Miller

Title:  Chief Financial Officer of CrossAmerica Partners GP LLC
(On behalf of the registrant, and in the capacity as principal financial
officer)
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101.CAL *
101.LAB *
101.PRE *
101.DEF *

EXHIBIT INDEX

Waiver, Second Amendment to the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Joinder dated as of September 30, 2014, by and
among Lehigh Gas Partners LP and Lehigh Gas Wholesale Services, Inc., together as the Borrowers, the Guarantors party thereto, the
Lenders party thereto and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, as Administrative Agent on behalf of the Lenders (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K for Lehigh Gas Partners LP, filed on October 3, 2014)

Lehigh Gas Partners LP Executive Income Continuity Plan (as amended)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer of Lehigh Gas GP LLC as required by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Certification of Principal Financial Officer of Lehigh Gas GP LLC as required by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Certification of Principal Executive Officer of Lehigh Gas GP LLC pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350

Certification of Principal Financial Officer of Lehigh Gas GP LLC pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

* Filed herewith
T Not considered to be “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section.
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Exhibit 10.2
EXECUTION VERSION

Lehigh Gas Partners LP
Executive Income Continuity Plan
(as amended),

1. Purpose. The purpose of this Executive Income Continuity Plan (this “Plan”) is to retain the services of executives and other key employees who
provide management services to Lehigh Gas Partners LP and its subsidiaries (the “Partnership”) and its general partner, Lehigh Gas GP LLC (the “GP”
collectively, with the Partnership, the “Company”) and to reinforce and encourage the continuing attention, dedication and loyalty of these executives without
the distraction of concern over the possibility of involuntary or constructive termination of employment resulting from unforeseen developments, by
providing income continuity for a limited period.

This Plan is intended to comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the regulations thereunder and
related guidance issued by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”).

2. Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings respectively indicated:
(a) “2012 Plan” shall mean the Lehigh Gas Partners LP 2012 Incentive Award Plan, as from time to time in effect.
(b) “Annual Bonus” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e) of this Plan.

(c) “Award” shall mean any and all awards granted under the 2012 Plan including, without limitation, options, unit appreciation rights, restricted units,
phantom units, profits interest, substitute awards, performance awards, unit awards, other unit based awards and any tandem distribution equivalent rights
granted with respect to an award.

(d) “Board” shall mean the board of directors of the Lehigh Gas GP LLC.

(e) “Cause” shall mean (i) the willful and continued failure by a Participant substantially to perform such Participant’s duties with the Company (other
than any such failure resulting from such Participant’s incapacity due to physical or mental illness), after a demand for substantial performance is delivered to
the Participant by the Company which specifically identifies the manner in which the Company believes that the Participant has not substantially performed
such Participant’s duties, or (ii) the willful engaging by the Participant in conduct demonstrably injurious to the Company. For purposes of this definition, no
act, or failure to act, on the part of a Participant shall be considered “willful” unless done, or omitted to be done, by such Participant without reasonable belief
that such Participant’s action or omission was in the best interests of the Company and was lawful.

(f) A “Change in Control” shall be deemed to have occurred upon the occurrence of the one of the following events:

@) Any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, acquires ownership of either (A) the common and subordinated units of
Lehigh Gas Partners LP (“Units”), or (B) the membership interests of the GP (“Membership Interests”) that, together with Units or
Membership Interests, as applicable, held by such person or group, constitutes more than 50% of either the total fair market value or total
voting power of either the Units or the Membership Interests, as applicable.

(ii) Any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, acquires (or has acquired during the 12-month period ending on the date of
the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) ownership of Units or Membership Interests possessing thirty-five percent
(35%) or more of the total voting power of the Company; or

(iii) A majority of members of the Board is replaced during any 12-month period by directors whose appointment or election is not
recommended by Lehigh Gas Corporation; or

(iv)  Any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, acquires (or has acquired during the 12-month period ending on the date of
the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) assets from the Partnership that have a total gross fair market value equal to or
more than sixty percent (60%) of the total gross fair market value of all of the assets of the Partnership immediately prior to such
acquisition.
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(g) “Company” shall mean the Partnership and Lehigh Gas GP LLC, collectively.

(h) “Compensation Committee” shall mean the Compensation Committee as constituted from time to time of the Board, or such other body as shall
have similar authority and responsibility.

(i) “Date of Termination” shall mean (i) if the Services of a Participant are terminated by death, the date of such Participant’s death, (ii) if the
Participant retires, the date of such Participant’s retirement, (iii) if such Services are terminated other than for Cause or other than as a result of Disability, the
date specified in the Notice of Termination, (iv) if such Services are terminated for Disability, the date of such Participant’s Disability, (v) if such Services are
terminated by the Participant for Good Reason, the date specified in the Notice of Termination, (vi) if the Participant’s Services are terminated following a
Change in Control, the date in the Notice of Termination, and (vii) otherwise shall be the last day such Participant provides Services to the Company.

(j) “Disability” shall mean that a Participant is unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or
mental impairment that can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than twelve (12) months.

(k) “Good Reason” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following: (A) a material diminution in the Participant’s base compensation; (B) a material
diminution in the Participant’s authority, duties, or responsibilities; (C) a material diminution in the authority, duties, or responsibilities of the supervisor to
whom the Participant is required to report, including a requirement that the Participant report to a corporate officer or employee instead of reporting directly
to the board of directors of the GP; (D) a material diminution in the budget over which the Participant retains authority; (E) a material change in the
geographic location at which the Participant must perform the Services; and (F) any other action or inaction that constitutes a material breach by Company of
the agreement under which the Participant provides services. Notice of Termination by a Participant for “Good Reason” shall not be effective unless all of the
following conditions are satisfied: (i) the occurrence of the condition which would otherwise constitute Good Reason under this Section 2(k) of this Plan must
have arisen without the Participant’s consent; (ii) such condition must remain uncorrected for 30 days after receipt by the Company of a notice of the
existence of such condition from the Participant in accordance with Section 10 of this Plan; and (iii) the date of Participant’s termination of Service must
occur within 90 days after the initial existence of the condition specified in such notice.

(1) “I.C. Plan” means the existing system of annual bonuses (cash, equity or a combination thereof) payable to Participants, pursuant to which annual
target bonuses are established based upon job levels and payments of bonuses as a percentage of such targets are made based upon Partnership and/or

individual performance.

(m) “Multiplier” shall mean (i) in the case of each Officer, the number 2.99; and (b) in the case of each other Participant, such number set forth adjacent
to such Participant’s name in Schedule “A” which in no event shall exceed 2.99.

(m) “Notice of Termination” shall mean a notice which indicates the specific basis for termination of the Services of a Participant relied upon and shall
set forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide such basis. The Notice of Termination shall also include the date of termination.

(n) “Officer(s)” shall mean any person other than the Chairman/CEO who is designated as an executive officer of the Company or Partnership by
resolution of the Board.

(o) “Participant” shall mean the Officers and any other person, who is an employee of Lehigh Gas Corporation, who is included in the membership of
this Plan as provided in Section 3 of this Plan.

(p) “Prospective Change in Control” shall have the meaning as defined in Section 12(b) of this Plan.
(q) “Service,” as used in Section 5 of this Plan, shall mean the provision of management services to the Company.

3. Membership. All Officers shall be Participants. The Compensation Committee may designate any other person, who provides Services, as a
Participant. Such Participant and the Multiplier applicable to such Participant
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shall be set forth in Schedule A, attached hereto and made a part hereof. After a person becomes a Participant, such Participant’s membership in this Plan
shall continue until such person’s death or retirement, termination by the Company or Lehigh Gas Corporation for Cause or Disability, or termination by such
Participant other than for Good Reason.

4. Termination. Each Participant shall be entitled to receive the income continuation payments provided for in Section 5 of this Plan upon termination
of such Participant’s Services (including, without limitation, the termination of the Omnibus Agreement between Lehigh Gas Corporation and the Company)
unless such termination is (a) because of the Participant’s death, Disability or retirement, (b) by the Company or Lehigh Gas Corporation for Cause, or (c) by
such Participant for any reason (other than for Good Reason which occurs within one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the termination); provided that, if
Notice of Termination is given prior to a Change in Control, such Participant shall have signed and delivered, in form and substance satisfactory to the
Company’s counsel, a non-disparagement agreement, and a waiver, effectively waiving all claims against the Company (including its directors, officers,
employees and agents) arising out of such Participant’s employment with Lehigh Gas Corporation and the provision of Services, other than claims for
payment post-termination under the terms of this Plan and employee benefit and compensation plans of the Company or Lehigh Gas Corporation, as
applicable, such waiver, and non-disparagement agreement to be delivered no later than the later of thirty (30) days following (i) the date of Notice of
Termination, or (ii) written request therefor by the Company, provided the Company must request same no later than three (3) months after the date of the
Notice of Termination. For all purposes of this Plan, a Participant shall be considered to have terminated his Services with the Company when Participant
incurs a “separation from service” with the Company within the meaning of section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) of the Code and applicable administrative guidance
issued thereunder.

5. Income Continuation and Vesting.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in Section 5(c) of this Plan, upon the termination of an Officer’s Services, pursuant to Section 4 of this Plan, (a) the
GP shall pay to such Participant in cash the sum of such Participant’s annual base salary at the rate in effect at the time Notice of Termination is given plus
such Participant’s Annual Bonus, in equal monthly installments over a twelve (12) month period following the Date of Termination in the case of Officers,
and (b) notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any Award agreement, all of such Participant’s Awards shall vest immediately on the date that the
Notice of Termination is given.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in Section 5(c) of this Plan, upon the termination of a Participant’s Services other than those of an Officer, pursuant to
Section 4 of this Plan, (a) the GP shall pay to such Participant in cash the sum of one-half of such Participant’s annual base salary at the rate in effect at the
time Notice of Termination is given plus one-half of such Participant’s Annual Bonus, in equal monthly installments over a six (6) month period following the
Date of Termination in the case of Officers, and (b) notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any Award agreement, all of such Participant’s Awards
shall vest immediately on the date that the Notice of Termination is given.

(c) Upon the termination of a Participant’s Services pursuant to a Notice of Termination given after, or in connection with, a Change in Control and
before the second anniversary of such Change in Control, pursuant to Section 4 of this Plan, the GP shall pay to such Participant the product of (A) the sum of
(x) the Participant’s annual base salary at the rate in effect at the time Notice of Termination is given, plus (y) the Participant’s Annual Bonus times (B) the
Multiplier, payable in a lump sum in cash following the Date of Termination, subject to Subsection (d) of this Section. Notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary in any Award agreement, upon the occurrence of a Change in Control, all Awards to Participants shall vest immediately on the date that the Change
in Control is effective.

(d) All payments under subsections (a), (b) and (c) of this Section 5 of this Plan shall commence, or be paid, on the first business day of the seventh
month after the Participant’s Date of Termination except as otherwise specifically provided in such subsections. Payments that would have been made during
the six-month period following the Participant’s Date of Termination shall be paid to the Participant on the first business day of the seventh month after the
Participant’s Date of Termination, without interest.

(e) As used in this Section 5 of this Plan, “Annual Bonus” means the annual target bonus under the I.C. Plan attributable to the Participant in effect at
the time the Notice of Termination is given. Notwithstanding the
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foregoing, if termination occurred for Good Reason as specified in Section 2(k)(A) of this Plan, the termination payments provided for in subsection 5(a) or
(b) shall be calculated using the annual base salary and Annual Bonus as in effect immediately before the reduction of such annual base salary or Annual
Bonus.

6. Other Payments. Upon termination of a Participant’s Services pursuant to Section 4 of this Plan, the GP shall, in addition to the payments provided
for in Section 5 of this Plan, pay to the Participant:

(a) All relocation payments incurred in connection with Section 2(k)(E) of this Plan and all legal fees and expenses incurred by the Participant as a
result of such termination (including all such fees and expenses, if any, incurred in contesting or disputing any such termination or in seeking to obtain or
enforce any right or benefit provided by this Plan or in connection with any tax audit or proceeding to the extent attributable to the application of
Section 4999 of the Code to any payment or benefit provided hereunder); and

(b) During the period of one (1) year following the Date of Termination in the case of an Officer and during the period of six (6) months following the
Date of Termination in the case of all other Participants, all reasonable expenses incurred by the Participant in seeking comparable employment with another
employer to the extent not otherwise reimbursed to the Participant, including, without limitation, the fees and expenses of a reputable out placement
organization, and reasonable travel, telephone and office expenses.

Any payments pursuant to this Section 6 shall be made by the Company upon or as soon as practicable following receipt of supporting documentation
reasonably satisfactory to the Company (but in any event not later than the close of the Participant’s third taxable year following the taxable year in which the
Date of Termination occurs). In no event shall any payment be made to Participant for fees and expenses incurred after the close of the Participant’s second
taxable year following the taxable year in which the Date of Termination occurs

7. Maintenance of Other Benefit Plans. For a period of three (3) years (one year if not in connection with a Change in Control) following an Officer’s
Date of Termination and for a period of one (1) year (six months if not in connection with a Change in Control) following the Date of Termination in the case
of a Participant who is not an Officer, the Company shall cause the Participant’s employer to maintain in full force and effect, for the continued benefit of
each Participant entitled to receive, or who received, payments pursuant to Section 5 of this Plan, comprehensive medical and dental insurance, group life
insurance (but not including disability coverage) on the same basis as such Participant participated immediately prior to the Date of Termination, unless the
Participant’s continued participation is not permitted under the general terms and provisions of such plans and programs or applicable law. Continued benefits
provided pursuant to the preceding sentence shall be subject to the following requirements: (a) continued provided during one taxable year of the Participant
shall not affect the continued benefits provided during any other taxable year of the Participant, (b) any reimbursement of an eligible expense with respect to a
continued benefit shall be made on or before the last day of the Participant’s taxable year in which the expense was incurred and (c) the right to a continued
benefit shall not be subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit.

8. No Mitigation. No Participant shall be required to mitigate the amount of any payment provided for under this Plan by seeking other employment or
otherwise, nor shall the amount of any payment so provided for be reduced by any compensation earned by any Participant as the result of employment by
another employer, by retirement benefits or by offset against any amount claimed to be owed by the Participant to the Company.

9. Successors. The Company will require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or
substantially all of the business and assets of the Company, by a written agreement, to expressly assume and agree to carry out the provisions of this Plan in
the same manner and to the same extent that the Company would be required to carry them out if no such succession had occurred.

10. Notice. Any notice expressly provided for under this Plan shall be in writing, shall be given either manually or by mail, telegram, telex, telefax or
cable, and shall be deemed sufficiently given, if and when received by the Company at its offices at 645 West Hamilton Street, Suite 500, Allentown,
Pennsylvania 18101, Attention: General Counsel, or by any Participant at the address on the records of the Company for such Participant, or if and when
mailed by registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the Company or the Participant to be notified at such address. Either the
Company or any Participant may, by notice to the other, change its address for receiving notices.

4
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11. Funding. All payments provided for under this Plan for Participants (including those who have retired) shall not be funded or secured, and no trust
shall be created hereunder. Payments under this Plan shall become fully vested and non-forfeitable upon the termination of a Participant’s Services except for
termination where a Participant not be entitled to income continuation payments as provided in Section 4 or as otherwise provided in any waiver, and non-
disparagement agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4 of this Plan.

12. Amendment and Termination.

(a) The Board may at any time or from time to time amend or terminate this Plan. No such amendment or termination may adversely affect any vested
benefits hereunder; and, provided further, that after a Change in Control, this Plan may not be amended or terminated without the consent of all persons who
were Participants as of the date of such Change in Control (including those who have retired).

(b) In addition, no amendment or termination made within one (1) year before a Change in Control and made while a Prospective Change in Control is
pending may adversely affect any benefit that might at any time be or become owing hereunder to a person who, immediately prior to the commencement of
such Prospective Change in Control, was a Participant, without the consent of such person (other than a benefit to any such person who is the person, or part
of the group, making the offer, or negotiating to make the offer, which constitutes the Prospective Change in Control). As used herein, the term “Prospective
Change in Control” means (i) any offer presented, directly or indirectly, to the Board which, if consummated, would constitute a Change in Control, or
(ii) any negotiation with the Board or any committee or representative thereof to make such an offer (including the unilateral announcement of the terms on
which such an offer would be made).

13. Claim and Appeal Procedure. This Section 13 of this Plan shall not apply after there has been a Change in Control.

The Company shall appoint a person or persons to adjudicate claims and appeals under this Plan (the “Administrator”). The Administrator shall provide
adequate notice in writing to any Participant or to any beneficiary (the “Claimant”) whose claim for benefits under this Plan has been denied. The
Administrator’s notice to the Claimant shall set forth:

(a) The specific reason for the denial;
(b) Specific references to pertinent Plan provisions upon which the Administrator based its denial;
(c) A description of any additional material and information that is needed;

(d) That any appeal the Claimant wishes to make of the adverse determination must be in writing to the Administrator within seventy-five (75) days
after receipt of the Administrator’s notice of denial of benefits. The Administrator’s notice must further advise the Claimant that the Claimant’s failure to
appeal the action to the Administrator in writing within the seventy-five (75) day period will render the Administrator’s determination final, binding and
conclusive; and

(e) The name and address to whom the Claimant may forward an appeal.

If the Claimant should appeal to the Administrator, the Claimant, or the Claimant’s duly authorized representative, may submit, in writing, whatever
issues and comments the Claimant or the Claimant’s duly authorized representative feels are pertinent. The Claimant, or the Claimant’s duly authorized
representative, may review pertinent Plan documents. The Administrator shall re-examine all facts to the appeal and make a final determination as to whether
the denial of benefits is justified under the circumstances. The Administrator shall advise the Claimant of its decision within sixty (60) days of the Claimant’s
written request for review, unless special circumstances (such as a hearing) would make the rendering of a decision within the sixty (60) day limit unfeasible,
but in no event shall the Administrator render a decision respecting a denial for a claim of benefits later than one hundred twenty (120) days after its receipt of
a request for review. The Administrator’s notice to the Claimant shall set forth:

(i) The specific reason for the denial;

(ii) Specific references to pertinent Plan provisions upon which the Administrator based its denial;

5
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(iii) A statement that the Claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to, and copies of, all documents, records,
and other information relevant to the Claimant’s claim; and

(iv) A statement that the Claimant has a right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA.

14. Governing Law. This Plan, and the rights and obligations of the Company and the Participants hereunder, shall be construed and governed in
accordance with the law of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

15. Partial Invalidity. If any provision of this Plan is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the
remaining provisions of this Plan, which shall remain in effect in accordance with its terms.

16. Certain Excise Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan, if Participant is a “disqualified individual” (as defined in section
280G(c) of the Code), and the payments and benefits provided for under this Plan, together with any other payments and benefits which Participant has the
right to receive from the Company or any of its affiliates, would constitute a “parachute payment” (as defined in section 280G(b)(2) of the Code), then the
payments and benefits provided for under this Plan shall be either (a) reduced (but not below zero) so that the present value of such total amounts and benefits
received by Participant from the Company and its affiliates will be one dollar ($1.00) less than three times Participant’s “base amount” (as defined in section
280G(b)(3) of the Code) and so that no portion of such amounts and benefits received by Participant shall be subject to the excise tax imposed by section
4999 of the Code, or (b) paid in full, whichever produces the better net after-tax position to Participant (taking into account any applicable excise tax under
section 4999 of the Code and any other applicable taxes). The reduction of payments and benefits hereunder, if applicable, shall be made by reducing, first,
payments or benefits to be paid in cash hereunder in the order in which such payment or benefit would be paid or provided (beginning with such payment or
benefit that would be made last in time and continuing, to the extent necessary, through to such payment or benefit that would be made first in time) and, then,
reducing any benefit to be provided in-kind hereunder in a similar order. The determination as to whether any such reduction in the amount of the payments
and benefits provided hereunder is necessary shall be made by the Company in good faith. If a reduced payment or benefit is made or provided, and through
error or otherwise, that payment or benefit, when aggregated with other payments and benefits from the Company (or its affiliates) used in determining if a
“parachute payment” exists, exceeds one dollar ($1.00) less than three times Participant’s base amount, then Participant shall immediately repay such excess
to the Company upon notification that an overpayment has been made. Nothing in this Section 16 shall require the Company to be responsible for, or have
any liability or obligation with respect to, Participant’s excise tax liabilities under section 4999 of the Code.

By: Lehigh Gas Partners LP and Lehigh Gas GP LLC
By: Lehigh Gas GP LLC, for itself and as general partner

By: /s/ Joseph V. Topper, Jr. 8/5/2014
Joseph V. Topper, Jr., CEO DATE
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Joseph V. Topper, Jr., certify:

1. T have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of CrossAmerica Partners LP;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(@

(b)

©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

@

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: November 7, 2014

/s/ Joseph V. Topper, Jr.

Joseph V. Topper, Jr.

Chief Executive Officer

CrossAmerica GP LLC

(as General Partner of CrossAmerica Partners LP)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Mark L. Miller, certify:

1. T have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of CrossAmerica Partners LP;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(@

(b)

©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: November 7, 2014

/s/ Mark L. Miller

Mark L. Miller

Chief Financial Officer

CrossAmerica GP LLC

(as General Partner of CrossAmerica Partners LP)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of CrossAmerica Partners LP (the “Partnership”) for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Joseph V. Topper, Jr., Chief Executive Officer of CrossAmerica GP

LLC, the General Partner of the Partnership, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that, to
my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Partnership.

Date: November 7, 2014

/s/ Joseph V. Topper, Jr.

Joseph V. Topper, Jr.

Chief Executive Officer

CrossAmerica GP LLC

(as General Partner of CrossAmerica Partners LP)




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of CrossAmerica Partners LP (the “Partnership”) for the nine months ended September 30, 2014, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Mark L. Miller, Chief Financial Officer of CrossAmerica GP LLC,
the General Partner of the Partnership, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that, to my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Partnership.

Date: November 7, 2014

/s/ Mark L. Miller

Mark L. Miller

Chief Financial Officer

CrossAmerica GP LLC

(as General Partner of CrossAmerica Partners LP)




